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Established in 1923, Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. has now been pioneering technologies

that contribute to the prosperity of customers and society for almost 80 years.

In June 2000, Fuji Electric Group launched the “S21 Plan,” a new medium-term

management vision to steer the Fuji Electric Group into the 21st century. The aim of

this plan is to bolster the Fuji Electric Group’s standing as the company that provides

customers with the highest satisfaction. This will be accomplished by reinforcing core

areas such as power semiconductor devices and other power electronic products, low-

voltage circuit breakers and switches, systems businesses such as water treatment

systems, and vending machines. At the same time, the “S21 Plan” calls for the

concentration of resources on four areas with excellent growth potential: environment,

information systems, services and components. Through flexible and dynamic

management, Fuji Electric intends to drive renewed growth across the entire Group in

line with a unified management vision.

Cautionary Statement With Respect to Forward-Looking Statements
Statements made in this annual report with respect to Fuji Electric’s plans, strategies and future performance are forward-looking statements based on
management’s assumptions and beliefs in light of the information currently available to it, and involve risks and uncertainties. Potential risks and
uncertainties include: (1) sudden changes in general economic conditions in Fuji Electric’s markets and changes in its operating environment such as
those resulting from changes in trade regulations; (2) exchange rates, particularly between the yen and the U.S. dollar and Asian and European
currencies; (3) the ability of Fuji Electric and its subsidiaries to develop and introduce products that incorporate new technology in a timely manner and
to manufacture them in a cost-effective way; (4) the rapid pace of technological innovation, especially in the field of electronics; (5) sudden changes in
the supply and demand balance in the markets Fuji Electric serves; (6) problems involving the intellectual property of Fuji Electric and other companies;
and other risk factors. Accordingly, actual results could differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement.
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31, 2001 and 2000 2001 2000 2001

Net sales ¥891,086 ¥851,830 $7,244,602

Operating income 25,007 4,143 203,309

Ordinary income (loss) 22,522 (948) 183,106

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests 21,319 (4,092) 173,325

Net income (loss) 9,711 (7,423) 78,951

As of March 31, 2001 and 2000

Shareholders’ equity 161,707 153,945 1,314,691

Total assets 964,211 937,233 7,839,114

yen U.S. dollars

Per share amounts

Net income (loss) ¥ 13.58 ¥ (10.38) $ 0.110

Note: U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated, for convenience only, at the rate of ¥123.00=U.S.$1.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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The fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, saw
Fuji Electric surge back into profit for the first
time in three years. Looking ahead, we remain
committed to seeing through the “S21 Plan” with
the view to enhancing the value of our company.

A MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

Fiscal 2000, the year ended March 31, 2001, was highly

significant for the Fuji Electric Group, as we embarked

upon our medium-term management vision, the “S21

Plan.” Equally important for the Group was that we ended

the 20th century by surging back into profit for the first

time in three years. This illustrates that we have reaped

the benefits of restructuring efforts taken over the last

two-and-a-half years, and that we are well on the way to

accomplishing the goals of the “S21 Plan.”

The Japanese economy during the year under

review saw signs of a moderate recovery during first

half of the year supported by higher private-sector capital

expenditures, growth in exports and other factors.

However, the abrupt slowdown of the U.S. economy in

the latter half of the year led to a slump in exports and

lower industrial output. Signs of a slowdown in capital

expenditures renewed concerns that the Japanese

economy was sliding back into recession.

Amid such an operating environment, we unveiled the

“S21 Plan,” our medium-term management vision that

follows in the footsteps of the restructuring undertaken to

date. Under the plan, we shifted resources to four strategic

growth areas: the environment, information, services and

components. Other initiatives included cooperation and

alliances with leading companies, enhanced measures for

realigning and restructuring underperforming businesses,

the restructuring of Group companies, and the realignment

of our production centers.

Net sales continued to be hampered by substantial

declines in the Retail Support Equipment & Systems

Group, where demand for vending machines fell sharply.

The Energy & Electric Systems Group, meanwhile,

recorded higher sales in the fields of environmental and

information systems. Both the ED&C·Drive Systems

Group and the Electronics Group posted growth in low-

voltage switching devices components, general purpose

inverters, servo systems, power semiconductors and ICs.

This reflected higher IT-related capital expenditures and

strong semiconductor demand, as well as the contributions

of new products. As a result of the above, net sales

increased by ¥39.2 billion over the previous fiscal year

to ¥891.0 billion ($7,245 million). We are particularly

pleased to report that net income improved to ¥9.7 billion

($79 million), up ¥17.1 billion from the previous year. This

President and Chief Executive Officer Kunihiko Sawa
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was attributable to significantly higher sales in the

ED&C·Drive Systems Group and Electronics Group,

the effect of an improved financial position following

restructuring actions, and exhaustive efforts to curtail

costs and expenditures.

In the current fiscal year, ending March 31, 2002,

our efforts continue to focus on our medium-term

management plan geared toward accomplishing the

goals of the “S21 Plan.” We have divided the businesses

of the Fuji Electric Group into 24 units, and are pursuing

higher profitability in each. At the same time, we are

working to expand our four strategic growth areas,

restructure business in mature fields, and enhance

strategic alliances. These efforts are expected to further

reinforce our operating base. The Fuji Electric Group is

unified in its pursuit of three management goals for the

current fiscal year ending March 2002: increasing orders,

securing profits, and using funds more effectively.

Attaining these goals with our best efforts will enable us

to put in place a structure capable of generating high

earnings. The current fiscal year marks the halfway point

of the strategic growth phase under the “S21 Plan.” We

are thus targeting net sales of ¥930 billion and net income

of ¥12 billion for the year.

Fiscal 2000 heralded the final year of the 20th century.

We marked this milestone by recording profits for the first

time in three years. This accomplishment, we believe, will

provide a sound platform for further group expansion into

the 21st century. At a turning point such as this, we would

like to take this opportunity to briefly discuss how we

envision the Fuji Electric Group evolving in the new era.

In the 20th century, Fuji Electric forged a proud history

as a manufacturer of electrical machinery that challenged

itself constantly to create new products and fulfill the

needs of its customers through the technologies we

offered. Our hallmark technologies helped stimulate the

growth of the Japanese electrical machinery industry,

and we are proud to have been able to contribute to

enriching our society. The 20th century saw remarkable

technological advances. We have enjoyed greater

comfort and convenience. But there are problems too,

including global environmental destruction and social

problems accompanying the advance of IT. Eliminating

such problems exacted on the 20th century will be a

pressing challenge for society in the 21st century. The

social responsibilities of corporations in the 21st century

will extend farther and assume greater importance than

ever before.

The Fuji Electric Group views the new century as an

era where we must reaffirm the importance of living as

humans. Our wish is to be a corporate group that can

make a significant contribution to society in the course

of its business activities.

We have resolved to channel our energies into the

four strategic growth areas outlined under the “S21 Plan.”

We believe that the challenges facing society in the 21st

century lie predominantly in these four areas. And helping

resolve these issues is the raison d’être of the Fuji Electric

Group. We are confident that we can support the evolution

of humankind, and that our businesses can make a telling

social contribution through our environmental and

information technologies. It is our firm belief that pursuing

activities that lead to a better society will translate into

appropriate profits for the Fuji Electric Group, and ultimately

lead to more corporate value in the years ahead.

Raising the corporate value of the Fuji Electric Group

will spur important developments. It will enable us to

deliver a suitable level of profits to our shareholders, help

our customers to create value, contribute to sustaining

and developing society, and allow us to provide excellent

employment opportunities. We are making the utmost

effort to accomplish our medium-term management

vision, driven by the strong awareness that our corpo-

rate value is directly linked to the profits of stakeholders.

Doing so will position the Fuji Electric Group among the

world’s most respected companies. We have started to

progress towards this direction and are changing in the

new era—and changing for the better.

Your continued assistance would be highly appreciated.

Kunihiko Sawa

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Q.

Q.

TOWARD ACCOMPLISHING THE “S21 PLAN”

Fiscal 2000, ended March 31, 2001, was a year in which the Fuji Electric Group moved onto the offensive under the “S21 Plan.” What

were the results of this drive? And what is your vision for the Fuji Electric Group in the current fiscal year?

A. We unveiled the “S21 Plan,” our medium-term management vision, in June 2000.

Under the plan, which clearly articulates our future direction, we moved onto the

offensive in the year under review to attain our targets. As a result, we substantially

improved earnings. We believe we were able to deliver results above and beyond our

projections because all employees across the Group worked with a sense of urgency

in a difficult operating environment.

The “S21 Plan” identifies four strategic growth areas for the Fuji Electric Group: the

environment, information, services and components. During the year under review,

we focused our efforts on expanding these areas. We conceived of these growth

areas out of commitment to addressing two major issues that will face society in the

21st century: resolving environmental problems and shaping a robust information

society. We also believe that these areas contain demand that has already emerged

and demand that remains untapped, however economic conditions might transform.

In the past year, we made a concerted effort to put in place a structure to take the

offensive in expanding businesses in these four areas. We also took an active approach

to forming cooperation and alliances with leading companies. When we say “take the

offensive,” we are not solely indicating the four growth areas. Even in mature fields, we

continue to see technological innovation, while customers’ demands are also constantly

changing. We also took an offensive stance to accurately identify customers’ needs,

and moved forward aggressively in efforts to seize higher market share.

As a result of the foregoing, net sales for the year ended March 2001 amounted to ¥891.0 billion ($7,245 million), higher than the ¥880

billion target set in the “S21 Plan.” This excellent performance was mainly attributable to growth in our strategic areas—particularly

services and components—above and beyond our initial projections. In services, we undertook detailed follow-up activities and broad-

ened our suite of services to incorporate identifying new private-sector-led demand, as well as the consulting business. Growth in

components was principally achieved in the first half of the year, buoyed by a booming market for IT and semiconductors. In the

environment, our performance fell just short of plans due to the effects of a reduction in public works projects. Also contributing to our

strong performance were the development and sale of new products, including a waste product information monitoring system. Our

results in information went largely to plan in line with demand for Intelligent Transport Systems (ITS) and other areas.

We thus placed our strategic areas onto a growth trajectory in the year under review, while at the same time worked steadily to raise

profitability in mature fields.

The “S” of S21 stands for “Satisfaction,” “Speed” and “Sensibility.” What is your thinking behind choosing these three words?

A. I am constantly urging all our employees across the Fuji Electric Group that we must be a company that engenders satisfaction

among customers and society. Maximizing the specialist skills of each and every staff member is how we will accomplish this objective.

It is up to our employees to hone these skills. Imbuing our organization with such technical prowess will, in my view, enhance the

speed with which to facilitate decision making and respond to new challenges. It will also enable us to take customer satisfaction to a

higher plane. In addition, employees must have heightened sensibility, enduring passion for work and inquiring minds. It is essential
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Q.

that we have the sensibility to perceive what our customers and society at large are looking for. Only then will we able to devise

solutions and proposals acceptable to both. For Fuji Electric, the word “sensibility” involves fostering the mindset to identify market

needs using our own initiative.

These three keywords are crucial if we are to be a company that provides maximum satisfaction for customers. They are also vital

from the perspective of instilling our vision among each and every employee in the Fuji Electric Group. Our performance in the fiscal

year under review—the first year of the “S21 Plan”—exceeded the plan’s targets. This illustrates that our employees were fully aware

of management’s thinking, and swiftly translated it into action.

The Fuji Electric Group’s results for the year ended March 2001 exceeded the targets of the “S21 Plan.” How do you envisage the Group

moving ahead in the current year, ending March 31, 2002?

A. We are continuing to take an offensive stance toward accomplishing the “S21 Plan” in the current fiscal year. We are instilling this

work ethic in employees by holding group managers’ meetings and a Group Management Committee.

In the current fiscal year, we expect to see a slowdown of the U.S. economy and further domestic stagnancy. Amid this turbulent

operating environment, we take the offensive by focusing intently on the following key goals: increasing orders, securing profits, and

making more efficient use of funds.  We are making a concerted effort to put in place a structure capable of generating higher earnings.

Specific initiatives are underway to achieve these goals. We have realigned our internal organization into 24 business units. The

objective here is to develop optimal strategies for each business unit, in both our strategic growth areas and mature fields, with the

view to enhancing competitiveness and profitability. We have categorized each unit into one of four types of business that will either:

– strive independently to become industry leaders;

– strive to become industry leaders by forming alliances in which Fuji Electric is the major force;

– undertake activities through alliances in which Fuji Electric is the minority force; or

– be considered for sale or elimination.

Strategies and initiatives will be pursued in line with the categorization of each business unit.

The Balanced Scorecard is a new method we have introduced to each business unit to

ensure that strategy is comprehensively implemented, and to evaluate business unit

performance. This monitoring mechanism will help us ensure that strategic targets are met

from a broad range of perspectives, including finance, customers, in-house business process,

as well as learning and growth. Follow-up activities based on the Balanced Scorecard

assessment will take place in each quarter. As a result of pursuing the above actions, we are

forecasting net sales of ¥930 billion and ordinary income of ¥23 billion for the year ending

March 2002.

In the year ending March 2003, the final year of the strategic growth phase under the

“S21 Plan,” we are targeting net sales of ¥1,000 billion and ordinary income of ¥30 billion.

 Perfomance Projections

 Net sales

 Ordinary
Income

Note: Please see the inside cover page for the cautionary
statement with respect to forward-looking statements.
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Q.

Q.

TOWARD ACCOMPLISHING THE “S21 PLAN”

Seeing through the “S21 Plan” will hinge on maximizing corporate value across the Fuji Electric Group by using group resources to the

full. Please tell us your thoughts on enhancing group management.

A. The management style to which the Fuji Electric Group aspires is to enhance corporate governance and to build a firm organization

of group companies. Pursuing this objective requires us to strike an optical balance between two forces. First is the group’s centripetal

force, focusing on our management vision. Second is our centrifugal force, in the sense of developing autonomous group business

and branching out into new markets.

We aim to enhance Group value by bolstering and raising efficiency in management. Reassessing and integrating the functions of

Group companies to create an optimal structure through selection and concentration of operations has been a priority issue. As of

March 31, 2000, there were 201 companies under the umbrella of the Fuji Electric Group. These companies have been realigned with

the view to delivering new corporate value. As a result, 21 companies have been or will be integrated or dissolved. In their place, 12

new companies have been established to strengthen our presence in our strategic growth areas, including the environment and

information. These initiatives continue to move forward.

In July 2000, we set up a Group Management Committee comprising the top management of the Fuji Electric parent company and

12 major subsidiaries. The committee discusses the orientation of management, shares views on collective Group-wide issues, and

deliberates on Group initiatives. The committee is also engaging in active discussion on the possibility of creating a new Group system

under a holding company structure.

Quality and efficiency of management are two other important aspects. Working from these two perspectives, we are actively and

systematically incorporating IT across the Fuji Electric Group. Plans call for upgrading our Group network, which includes systems for

accounting, human resources, product marketing and other functions. We expect these improvements to contribute to higher profit-

ability in the near future.

Enhancing brand image is one of your measures for strengthening corporate governance. How do you intend to raise the image of the

Fuji Electric Group?

A. Enhancing brand image is one of the most pressing agendas for the Fuji Electric Group. Being a company is not solely about

increasing profits. Today, society and markets are also questioning the value of a company’s existence. Extensive IR activities and

frequent TV campaigns are of course important for raising any company’s brand image. But we don’t believe that these alone

engender value in a company’s existence in the truest sense.

Our basic approach to business is to contribute to society by providing customers with product technologies and services. Most

important is that in pursuing this approach, we build a reputation in society through our corporate and business activities. In our

opinion, the key to maximizing our brand power lies in how accurately and effectively we convey the value of the Fuji Electric Group to

our stakeholders.

To enhance our brand power, it is equally vital that each and every employee embraces the desire to contribute

to society through their individual actions.
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Q.

Q.
 Human resources development is a key factor for maintaining corporate growth. At the same time, the progress of globalization is

further highlighting the need for employees who can perform on the world stage. How is the Fuji Electric Group addressing these issues?

A. Employees determine whether a company can perform globally, as well as in its own society. A company’s success depends on

whether its people are capable of acting on any stage. Performing is all about being trusted and respected by those around you. Each

time I attend a training seminar or other meeting, I always inform prospective executive officers and managers that having a human

side is an essential condition of being part of management. Naturally, learning from outstanding business

people around the world will give you an insight into management methodologies and case studies. But

I want our employees to realize that being a person who is trusted and respected forms the basis for his

or her performance.

Within this great tide of globalization, having an interest in different cultures is extremely important. If

we’re not interested, we can’t expect to truly exhibit our maximum potential on a global scale.

We have a number of training mechanisms in place across the Fuji Electric Group to foster employees

capable of performing on the global stage. Some training is divided into separate categories according

to the position of each employee. Technical training is also provided on new technologies and forms of

logic. We also provide additional training to upgrade international business skills with the view to en-

hancing employees’ ability to adapt to different cultures. Prospective executive officers attend management classes, while special

seminars are also held for would-be managers. This range of training courses allows us to identify likely candidates for management

roles within the company.

Irrespective of how we provide such opportunities for gaining knowledge and learning methodology, it remains of paramount

importance that employees sharpen their sensibilities, hone their expertise and develop as people in a whole host of other ways.

Restructuring production centers is important in terms of strengthening technical capabilities and enhancing cost competitiveness.

What specific action is the Fuji Electric Group taking in this regard?

A. In the past, we have restructured our production centers on a number of occasions. Looking at collective technologies and

markets from the perspective of our 24 realigned business units, our production centers are still definitely divided. To increase the

autonomy of our business units, we need to put in place a uniform production system for each unit. We also need to concentrate and

streamline our technologies and technical skills. This will help us achieve our goal of building an optimal production system.

Our Matsumoto Factory, for example, manufactures semiconductors, currency equipment and systems, watt-hour meters and

other products. We have substantially realigned the production systems of manufacturing subsidiaries affiliated with the Matsumoto

Factory with the view to making us more competitive than our rivals in the global market by enhancing our technical capabilities and

cost competitiveness.

We are also working to improve our earning power in vending machine operations. One step is concentrating the R&D and manufacturing

functions of our Mie Factory and manufacturing subsidiary Fuji Denki Reiki Seizo Co., Ltd. solely at the Mie Factory.

In power electronics devices, such as UPS and high-voltage inverters, we will concentrate and amalgamate the R&D and manufacturing

functions of our Tokyo Systems Factory with the Kobe Factory to create one manufacturing base. This move is designed to improve

R&D efficiency and rapidly scale back costs.

In switch boards, we intend to consolidate our three manufacturing operations in Tokyo, Fukiage and Kobe into two factories in

Tokyo and Kobe. This will enable us to integrate our production of switch board technologies, as well as information, telecommunication,

monitoring and control technologies.

The restructuring of our production system is of paramount importance for responding to changes in our operating structure and

business environment.  We are committed to pushing through structural reforms where necessary, curtailing surplus personnel and

equipment, and exploring the possibility of shifting production overseas.
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This group’s results in environmental and information

systems fields focused on its key businesses: core infor-

mation systems and waste movement monitoring systems.

Overall performance improved over the previous fiscal year

as environmental and information-related business expanded

Strong growth in year-on-year sales was recorded in

ED&C·Drive Systems business, including magnetic

contactors, PLCs, AC inverters and servo systems. The

business dramatically improved its performance, meeting

strong domestic demand in IT sectors, and from

manufacturers of precision metal molds and injection molding

equipment. UPS, one of our hallmarks, also posted excellent

results, while inverters saw outstanding sales due to growing

overseas interest in energy saving.

This group recorded higher sales of power semiconductors

due to market expansion in information, communications,

industrial and automotive fields, and the arrival of high-

value-added products. In ICs, the group aggressively

pushed ahead with its policy of concentrating resources

Sales of vending machines were lower than in the previous

year, principally owing to a downturn in the market as a

whole, in addition to the continuing trend toward lower prices.

Freezing and refrigerated showcases fared better than in

the previous year against a backdrop of aggressive capital

Other businesses primarily target Fuji Electric and Fuji

Electric Group companies, and consist of logistics ser-

vices, printing and information-related services, insurance

agency services, financial services and R&D.

FUJI ELECTRIC.........9

Sales Overview

expenditures by supermarkets and convenience stores. Currency

equipment & systems sales were also higher, mainly reflecting

the demand for coin mechanisms capable of accepting Japan’s

redesigned ¥500 coin.

steadily. In the field of electric power industries, business slowed

substantially due to lower investment by power companies.

Higher year-on-year sales in industrial and transportation systems

resulted from deliveries of substations for new subway projects

in Japan and of clean room facilities overseas.

on strategic markets. As a result, sales of power supply ICs

and plasma display ICs soared. Enhanced technological

capabilities and the expansion of the aluminum substrate

business drove higher sales of magnetic disks, while

photoconductive drums also achieved growth.
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Information, Telecommunication and
Control Systems
Water Treatment and Measuring Systems
Electric Power Systems
Radiation Monitoring Systems
FA and Distribution Systems
Environmental Systems
Application Systems for Motors
Industrial Power Supplies
Electrical Equipment for Rolling Stock
Clean-room Facilities
Laser Devices
Visual Equipment
Watt-hour Meters
Substation Systems
Thermal Power Plant Equipment
Hydroelectric Power Plant Equipment
Nuclear Power Plant Equipment
Energy Saving Systems
New Energy Generating Systems

ENERGY & ELECTRIC SYSTEMS GROUP

We are currently seeking to become a best-solutions provider in the fields of industrial systems and

social infrastructure. Supplying superior products and services is our constant objective, and at the

same time, we hope to contribute to industrial and social progress in the 21st century by creating new

value through IT and environmental technologies imbued with our experience and know-how. Focusing

on three core operations — information, environment and services — we are dedicated to working

together with customers to make their businesses successful.

Overview of Operating Environment and
Results for the Year Ended March 31, 2001
In the field of information systems, we are
promoting business solutions for emerging
information industries, social infrastructure
projects and electric power systems drawing
on our information, communications and
control technologies. Sales to this field
increased from the previous fiscal year,
supported by robust demand for IT-related
products in line with high levels of IT investment.

In environmental systems, we focus on water
treatment projects, industrial waste-to-energy
projects, and energy solutions. Sales of water
treatment systems declined due to cutbacks
in public works projects, and smaller projects
with lower budgets. To offset these declines,
we concentrated on expanding new business,
including a GPS-based information network
system for waste transport vehicles.

In the field of electric power industries, we
develop, engineer and build thermal and hydro
power plants, as well as related power
transmission and distribution systems. In the
year under review, we completed several
overseas projects including a pumped-storage

President, Energy & Electric  Systems Company Haruo Ito

MAIN
PRODUCTS

hydroelectric power plant. Sales in this field,
however, declined mainly due to year-on-year
rescheduling of investment plans by domestic
electric power companies.

In the field of industrial and transportation
systems, we focus on electric motor application
systems, transportation systems, including
substation equipment for railways, and
electrical equipment for rolling stock and other
plant systems for the private sector, such as
clean room facilities and cogeneration plant
facilities. This field also felt the effects of weak-
ening capital expenditures in the private sector.
Nevertheless, sales increased from the previ-
ous fiscal year because of efforts to develop a
services business, completion of substations
for a new subway line in Japan and delivery
and construction of clean room facilities for the
overseas market.

Due to the above, net sales in this group
rose by 8.4%, to ¥413.5 billion ($3,362
million). Thanks to the benefits of overall cost
reductions achieved through business restruc-
turing over the past few years, operating
income increased by ¥1.4 billion, to ¥7.5 billion
($61 million).
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Our call center construction services with their core Computer Telephony Integration (CTI) system realize an
effective platform for conducting customer relationship management (CRM) programs.

For example, the Internet and other forms of IT

are bringing about an e-government society

where people can file applications for official

documents from home, pay their taxes at con-

venience stores and browse public information

whenever they want. Our e-government solutions

are helping improve public services and raise

operational efficiency at municipal governments.

more
convenient
Underlying initiatives to establish e-government in

Japan are our unique e-government solutions.
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Electronic Toll Collection (ETC) systems are installed
at expressway tollgates, helping alleviate traffic con-
gestion and reduce gas emissions.

The process I/O unit relays on-site signals such as
temperature and pressure to control equipment and
computers for the operation and monitoring of plants.
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ENERGY & ELECTRIC SYSTEMS GROUP

（％）

 Net Sales
 Share of Total Net Sales

Operating Income (Loss)

（¥ Billion） （¥ Billion）

(Projection) (Projection)

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999,

the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 and the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 reflect actual
results for this group.

2. Projections for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2002 are based on management’s estimates as
at April 27, 2001.

3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.
4. For the cautionary statement with respect to

forward-looking statements, please see the inside
cover page.

Measures Taken During the Year Under
Review
During the fiscal year under review, the group
concentrated on improving performance by
focusing resources on three major growth
areas: information, environment and services.
We established a Customer Service Division
in our organization, bringing the total number
of divisions to six, including the Information
Systems, Environmental Systems, Industrial
& Transportation Systems, Thermal Power
and Nuclear Power Divisions. Focusing efforts
on three major growth areas, we expanded
the business of the Energy & Electric Systems
Group by establishing and reinforcing sales
bases and working together with affiliated
companies.

Efforts were taken to expand business in our
three major growth areas.

In information systems, we expanded busi-
ness in IT solutions, e-government, and Intelli-
gent Transport Systems (ITS) based on
know-how accumulated in the electric power,
public, and industrial sectors. We set up a sales
network supported by systems engineers in
sales offices to conduct solutions business with
the goal of launching an information dealers’
system. We enhanced our technical capabili-
ties for total IT solutions by actively forming
business alliances with the parties who
complement our technologies. On the sales
front, we reached out to new markets and
customers under the keywords of logistics,
including supply chain management, manu-
facturing and infrastructure solutions.

In environmental systems, business expan-
sion activities were based on the following
three core fields. Our emphasis in the energy
solutions business was new energy utilization
and energy conservation management. Waste-
to-energy systems covered waste incineration,
recycling plants and electric power cogenera-
tion plants. Water treatment plants and other
environmental protection plants centered on
systems that use ozone, membrane, and
ultraviolet ray technologies.

Services for existing customers were im-
proved with the provision of a new suite of ser-
vices to upgrade our activities to respond to
product lifecycles. On the sales front, we set
up new sales departments in branch offices
throughout Japan. These departments are
closely linked to existing sales operations to
contribute to new business.

We also worked to improve earnings in
mature fields. In thermal power, one measure

we took to expand our overseas business was
the establishment of the Taiwan Preventative
Maintenance Department to strengthened our
service activities. Furthermore, we strengthen
the activity of the Fuji/Siemens Energy Promo-
tion Group in developing joint business with
Siemens AG. We also acquired ISO 9001 cer-
tification for our engineering departments.

In power transmission and distribution
systems, we aggressively engaged in new
types of business and primarily focused on
power conservation management solutions.
Actions were taken in light of power industry
deregulation, which stimulated new market
developments.

In this field, we entered into a comprehensive
alliance with Hitachi, Ltd. and Meidensha
Corporation to build a widespread cooperative
partnership to develop, design, manufacture
and provide services for power transmission
and distribution equipment.
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58,000kW steam turbine generator for U.S.-based
Cal Energy’s Salton Sea geothermal plant.
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Management Policies and Projected
Results for the Year Ending March 31, 2002
To enable the group to achieve the specific
goals set in the medium-term management
vision, the “S21 Plan,” we separated our busi-
ness into the growth areas of information,
environment and services, and mature fields
such as electric power, transportation and in-
dustrial plant business. To reach our targets,
we reorganized the group, effective April 2001,
into the five groups of Sales Coordination,
Environmental Systems, Information & Control
Systems, Power Systems and Industrial
Systems & Services, and one business unit,
the Transportation & Defense Systems Division.
The marketing and technical operations of each
group will be consolidated with the aim of rais-
ing operational efficiency.

We will push ahead with the following two
initiatives to substantially improve profitability
by increasing management autonomy on a
consolidated basis and responding proactively
to restructuring of electric industries and other
changes in the business environment.
(1) Accelerate development of business centered

on information, environment and services by
focusing resources on these areas.

(2) Continue to make steady progress with mea-
sures to address issues deemed necessary
in recent years. These measures include: 1)
establishment of Japan AE Power Systems
Corporation, a joint venture for the power
transmission and distribution field; 2) estab-
lishment of Fuji Electric Systems Co., Ltd.,
for restructuring and expanding services
business in various industries; and 3) realign-
ment of production centers.

To respond to the diversifying needs of
customers in the information systems field, we
will further expand our information system
solutions business by upgrading our infor-
mation dealers’ system and strengthening
alliances with affiliated companies.

In environmental systems, we will develop
our business in specialized areas. We will
differentiate our business based on the key-
words of water, energy and waste. We will
emphasize a regional strategy in developing
new business fields for water treatment
systems. Our efforts in the energy solutions
business will focus on expanding clean energy
and energy conservation areas while utilizing
solar, fuel cell and other technologies. In waste-
to-energy systems, we will strengthen our
marketing and technological development
capabilities to increase business volume of
waste treatment systems, environmental
information and refuse-derived fuel (RDF)
power generation and others.

Our emphasis in the field of electric power
industries will be on developing business for
medium-capacity thermal power plants with
strong growth potential, such as IPPs, combined
heat and power generation, and geothermal
plants. In nuclear power, we will concentrate
on front-end business such as fuel handling
facilities, and back-end business including fuel
reprocessing. We will cement a dominant posi-
tion in network control and distribution systems
by drawing on core technologies in various
control systems and advanced metering
systems. We will also launch a new solutions
business as electric power industries continue
to be liberalized and deregulated.

In industrial systems and services, the
establishment of a new subsidiary, Fuji Electric
Systems Co., Ltd., will contribute to higher cor-
porate value for our customers by providing
them with optimal solutions across the life-
cycles of equipment and systems, from the
design stage to operation and maintenance.

In light of the foregoing, projections for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2002 are for
net sales to climb by 7.4% to ¥444 billion,
and operating income to increase by 6.5%
to ¥8 billion.
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ED&C·DRIVE SYSTEMS GROUP

We will contribute to increasing value for customers — from energy transmission and distribution to

factories — by offering the world’s highest levels of quality, performance and services in automation

control, drive and power supply components, and in small and medium-sized systems made using

these components. Low-voltage ED&C components, general-purpose inverters, servo systems, PLCs,

UPS and other components will be promoted globally as our most distinctive products. We will also

work to enhance our systems response capabilities with the view to establishing new value through

creative ideas.

President, ED&C·Drive Systems Company Shigeaki Hori

Magnetic Contactors
Operation Indicators
Industrial Relays
Time Delay Relays
Gas Detectors
Molded-case Circuit Breakers
Earth-leakage Circuit Breakers
Current-limiting Fuses
High-voltage Distribution Equipment
Cast Resin Transformers
Power Factor Regulators
Energy Monitoring Units
AC Power Regulators
Switches for Detection
Programmable Logic Controllers
Programmable Operation Displays
Networking Equipment and Systems
Induction Motors
Synchronous Motors
Geared Motors
Brake Motors
Fans
Coolant Pumps
Blowers
General Purpose Inverters
Servomotor Systems
Induction Heating Inverters
Uninterruptible Power Supplies
Mini Uninterruptible Power Supplies

MAIN
PRODUCTS

Overview of Operating Environment and
Results for the Year Ended March 31, 2001
Increased capital expenditures drove higher
demand for mobile phones and PCs. This con-
tributed significantly to sales growth by creat-
ing a favorable market for IT-related sectors,
precision metal molds and injection molding
equipment. Further boosting sales were the
promotion of aggressive sales and marketing
programs. Taking the offensive led to strong
performances by mainstay products including
the NEO SC magnetic contactors, the
MICREX-SX PLCs (programmable logic con-
trollers), the F-MPC04P energy monitoring units,
11-series inverters (AC drive) and FALDIC-�
AC-servo systems. Aggressive marketing
efforts also focused on UPS (Uninterruptible
Power Supplies).

As a result, net sales in ED&C·Drive Systems
increased by 25.9% to ¥196.5 billion ($1,598
million). We also managed to reverse the
previous year’s ¥2.4 billion operating loss into
operating income of ¥5.3 billion ($43 million).

Measures Taken During the Year Under
Review
The goal of the ED&C·Drive Systems Group is
to enhance value for customers while maintain-
ing a high level of earnings. We will contribute
to increasing value for various customers—
from energy transmission and distribution to
factories—by offering the world’s highest levels
of quality, performance and support services
in automation control, drive and power supply
components, and in small and medium-sized
systems made using these components. With
these themes in mind, we took the offensive in
selling and marketing our mainstay products
while placing priority on the following points.

In order to supply high-quality products to
our customers whenever they want, we
launched “i-shopping,” an online e-marketplace
located on the Fuji Electric website. Customers
in Japan can now order our products directly
over the Internet, and can have them delivered
very quickly.

The Chinese market for inverters is opening
up a host of opportunities for Fuji Electric. As
one action to fortify our presence, we
strengthened ties with a leading Chinese agent.
Proactive efforts were made to obtain inter-
national standard certification for products to
ensure that we can meet the needs of cus-
tomers in global markets.

Supplying stand-alone standard products
with outstanding quality is not all we do. In the
last fiscal year, we worked hard to capture
orders for small and medium-sized systems,
such as high-speed positioning systems linking
our MICREX-SX through SX BUS. We also
worked to make all the products handled by
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Techno Garden is the main systems support center that enables pre-installation simulations and
training for new systems using up-to-the-minute equipment.

more

efficient
Our inverters work behind the scenes to save

your energy and costs dramatically.

A key factor in energy and cost saving in

facilities including hotels, department stores,

hospitals and offices, is to improve the

efficiency of air-conditioning systems. Inverters

patiently watch loads placed on motors and

cut energy consumption by accurate motor

control every second. While keeping room

temperature comfortable, inverters make

substantial energy savings. Also, variable

speed operation of conveyers, pumps and

other industrial applications can be achieved

very efficiently. Our inverters work to save your

energy and cost dramatically.
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The FALDIC-� servo system realizes more compact,
higher-performance electric motors and servo amps.

These reputable NEO SC magnetic contactors were
developed around five key concepts: global con-
formity, safety, practicality, compactness, and
environmental soundness.

MICREX-SX, our new PLCs compatible with open net-
works, integrate control, operation and monitoring.
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ED&C·DRIVE SYSTEMS GROUP

the ED&C·Drive Systems Group compatible
with open networks and remote maintenance,
where technical support people can monitor and
remotely control the products in customers’
factories through the Internet and public
phones. We also developed packages of auto-
mation software and facilitated customers’
improvement of production lines.

In July 2000, we joined forces with Hitachi,
Ltd. and Meidensha Corporation to establish
Japan Motor & Generator Co., Ltd. This new
company, which designs and develops high-
voltage motors and small- to medium-capacity
generators, is drawing on the leading tech-
nologies of the three companies to create prod-
ucts that can outdistance its competitors in
the global marketplace.

（％）

 Net Sales
 Share of Total Net Sales

Operating Income (Loss)

（¥ Billion） （¥ Billion）

(Projection) (Projection)

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999,

the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 and the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 reflect actual
results for this group.

2. Projections for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2002 are based on management’s estimates as
at April 27, 2001.

3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.
4. For the cautionary statement with respect to

forward-looking statements, please see the inside
cover page.

Management Policies and Projected Results
for the Year Ending March 31, 2002
The fiscal year ending March 31, 2002, marks
the first year of our new medium-term man-
agement plan. We have positioned seven
themes that will spur us toward achieving the
“S21 Plan,” our medium-term management
vision, and further propel our business into the
21st century.

First, we will improve and strengthen our earn-
ings structure. Second, we will realign our busi-
ness units and products to provide a simpler
strategic direction for our operations. Our third
theme is global competitiveness and strategic
alliances with other players. We will step up
efforts to rationalize and speed up operations
in every geographic area. Sales growth through
a more effective selling process and promotion
of small and medium-sized systems is our fourth
objective. Our fifth theme will be to enhance cost
competitiveness by integrating philosophies in
design and development, restructuring produc-
tion centers and making effective use of IT.
Further improving product quality, our sixth
theme, will require upgrading our quality assur-
ance system. Finally, we will establish and work
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Our high-efficiency motors lower energy consumption
and running costs significantly.

Our UPS (Uninterruptible Power Supplies) solves the
problem of unstable power supply, providing a con-
stant supply of electricity for applications ranging
from PCs and servers to entire networks.
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to enhance a global network for offering reliable
services to our customers worldwide.

In line with the seven elements of our basic
policy, we will focus on four key initiatives in
the current fiscal year.

Globalization is our first. Our efforts in this
regard will focus on making our products more
competitive in global markets. In particular, we
will realign production centers for core products
such as inverters and low-voltage ED&C com-
ponents, and enhance sales networks. Our
target is to raise the ratio of overseas sales
within the group to at least 30%.

Second, we will make the most effective use
of our resources through partnerships and
alliances with other players. Such tie-ups will
enable us to achieve our task of serving
customers with greater speed and ability.

Our third initiative is to implement an aggres-
sive sales and marketing strategy in a manner
to maximize strength of core products. This
principally involves rolling-out toward new cus-
tomers and expanding current business-ties
with existing customers, through a more
effective selling process, setting a more
aggressive sales target and more efficient
focus. We will also extend our sales channels
through “i-shopping,” our e-marketplace
launched in 2000. Further enhancements will
be made in open networks, remote mainte-
nance and packaged automation software as
we increase our lineup of systems components.
This will open up new breakthroughs for small
and medium-sized systems business.

Our fourth and final initiative is becoming
more cost competitive. Restructuring our pro-
duction centers by, for example, shifting pro-
duction overseas and outsourcing, will make
this possible. We will also introduce quality
engineering to minimize costs and risks, visible
or invisible, resulting from product defects.

In light of the foregoing, projections for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2002, are for sales
of ¥192 billion, following the transfer of the
switchgear business, which accounts for sales
of approximately ¥10 billion, to a different seg-
ment, and a 3% increase in operating income
to ¥5.5 billion.
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Magnetic Disks
Bipolar Power Transistors
Power Modules
Smart Power Devices
Rectifier Diodes
Monolithic ICs
Hybrid ICs
Semiconductor Sensors
Surge Absorbers
Photoconductive Drums for Copiers
and Printers

Overview of Operating Environment and
Results for the Year Ended March 31, 2001
In power semiconductors, the first half of the
year saw the IT industry driving an invigorated
semiconductor market. We took production of
discrete devices and power modules to the
very limits of existing production capacity,
working to meet customers’ demands as far
as possible. The slowdown of IT-related
markets in the year’s second half manifested
itself first in lower orders for discrete devices,
then in a downturn in orders for industrial power
modules beginning late in 2000. Nevertheless,
over the whole year net sales climbed by 18%,
a record-high performance for this group. In
particular, sales of IGBT modules soared by
46% over the previous year.

In ICs, as with power semiconductors, we
recorded our highest ever sales as an excellent
first half performance substantially increased
full-year sales by 21%, despite a sluggish
market in the year’s second half. Demand was
strong for power supply ICs used in mobile
phones as well as in notebook PCs, video
cameras and other mobile applications. Much
higher sales were also recorded for plasma
display panel (PDP) ICs in comparison with the
previous year’s figure.

In magnetic disks, the PC and server
markets saw steady demand in the first half of
the year. The worldwide slowdown of IT sectors
in the year’s second half, however, resulted in
lower production due to falling sales and higher
inventories. This led to a slump in shipments
of HDDs, shaping an operating environment
clouded in uncertainty. Furthermore, fewer
magnetic disks were required per HDD as a

ELECTRONICS GROUP

We are firmly committed to providing high-quality electronic devices as only Fuji Electric can. These

products will meet the most exacting standards expected of a global player as we draw on the

world’s highest levels of technical prowess in four core areas: power semiconductors, ICs, magnetic

disks and photoconductive drums. The world of electronics is dominated by technological innovations

that hit the market at breakneck speed. With a presence that extends from industrial to information

systems, we will supply customers with creative technologies that anticipate market demands. In

particular, we will offer technologies that reduce the size and weight of equipment, boast higher

performance and conserve more energy than ever before.

President, Electronics Company Tetsunosuke Ishibashi

MAIN
PRODUCTS

result of continued dramatic improvements in
the recording density of each disk annually. In
response, we reinforced R&D capabilities
across the group, enhanced cost competitive-
ness by restructuring manufacturing opera-
tions, and expanded our aluminum substrate
business. As a result, net sales increased by
12% year on year.

In photoconductive drums, higher shipments
of printers, copiers and other office equipment
drove market growth of around 10% on a
volume basis. Additionally, demand for the
supplier market increased significantly on the
back of solid U.S. and European markets in
the year’s first half. This situation, coupled with
the release of new organic photo conductors
(OPCs), lifted sales 14% higher than the
previous year. Our market share of OPCs,
excluding companies making this product only
for internal use, soared 33% year on year.

As a result of the above, net sales in this group
increased 18.4% to ¥137.9 billion ($1,121 mil-
lion). We also recorded operating income of ¥5.9
billion ($48 million), a vast improvement on last
year’s ¥7.5 billion operating loss.
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HDD applications continue to expand as a

recording media not only for PCs, but also

for audio-visual devices. Magnetic disks

are critical to the performance of any HDD.

Our 3.5-inch disks can each hold 40GB of

data, leading the industry with their ground-

breaking technology. We pledge to deliver

still higher quality products in accordance

with customers’ needs as quickly and

timely as possible.

This magnetic disk clean room makes possible the supply of high-quality products by applying
sophisticated manufacturing technologies and stringent quality control.

more

capacity
As storage capacity of disks rises between 60–100%

each year, our magnetic disks are positioned on the

cutting edge of technological innovation.
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ELECTRONICS GROUP

Used in PCs, TVs and games consoles, the Super
FAP-G series of super-high performance power
MOSFETs takes silicon to the very edge of its theo-
retical limits through innovative design technology.

Measures Taken During the Year Under
Review
In the power semiconductor field, we
developed the Product Mix Optimization
Program to add value to our product portfolio.
As a result, MOS devices such as IGBTs and
power MOSFETs—all growth products—
accounted for more than 50% of power
semiconductor sales for the first time. “Smart”
products—those equipped with ICs—
accounted for around 30% of MOS devices.
In R&D, we developed and began supplying
new products that we expect to join our current
lineup of 6 products where we boast the top
market share. New products included the
Super FAP-G series, which takes MOSFET
to the very edge of its theoretical limits, and
R-IPM3 for next-generation IGBTs. In manufac-
turing, we improved product quality by push-
ing ahead with our Semiconductor Quality
Innovation Program. We also further strength-
ened our alliance with Hitachi, Ltd. primarily
through joint venture Fuji Hitachi Power
Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

In ICs, we expanded our business with
power supply ICs and high-voltage display ICs
as our core products. We increased sales of
power supply ICs for mobile applications by
creating smaller units that consume less power.
This was achieved using PWM control tech-
nology and CMOS analog technology, which
makes possible reliable operation under high
voltages and high precision. New products
brought to market in the year under review in-
cluded the FA3641 and FA3647 series of low-
power-consuming ICs for DC/DC converters.
These products are being adopted by many

large-scale users. In high-voltage display ICs,
we expanded our production capacity, includ-
ing with the installation of testing facilities, to
ensure a supply capability sufficient to meet
rising output of PDP displays by our customers.

In magnetic disks, we focused on enhancing
R&D capabilities and cost competitiveness in
response to intensifying competition. As a
result, we saw concrete results from the
development of essential technologies,
including CVD technology. We also began
commercial-scale production of 3.5-inch disks
capable of storing 20GB. To bolster cost
competitiveness, we reinforced our production
system by realigning three production centers
in Japan (Matsumoto, Yamanashi) and Malaysia.

In photoconductive drums, we took steps
to deepen ties between sales people and
research teams to develop materials to help
create more distinctive products. One result
was a 2.8 times increase in sales of positive-
charge type OPCs for printers as our line-up
of OPCs grew. Furthermore, we began selling
7 new OPCs for digital copiers and 15 new
OPCs for printers.

 Net Sales
 Share of Total Net Sales

Operating Income (Loss)

（¥ Billion） （¥ Billion）

(Projection) (Projection)

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999,

the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 and the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 reflect actual
results for this group.

2. Projections for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2002 are based on management’s estimates as
at April 27, 2001.

3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.
4. For the cautionary statement with respect to

forward-looking statements, please see the inside
cover page.

Management Policies and Projected
Results for the Year Ending March 31, 2002
Economic conditions for this group are ex-
pected to be highly uncertain in the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2002. Nevertheless, we aim
to achieve net sales of ¥143 billion, approxi-
mately 4% higher year on year, and operating
income of ¥10 billion.

In power semiconductors, we will base our
operations on our slogan of becoming the
world’s leading power semiconductor company
by focusing business on the customer, and on
higher earnings. We will continue to push ahead
with a range of initiatives, including the Prod-
uct Mix Optimization Program successfully
launched in the year ended March 31, 2001.
We will strengthen our operational structure
while taking a proactive approach to enhanc-
ing customer relationships and improving the
quality of our products and services. Plans call
for continued expansion of production capac-
ity for MOS devices, our strategic product for
improving deliveries. Although we expect to
encounter an adverse operating environment
in the current fiscal year, we are dedicated to
fulfilling our business targets.
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These organic photoconductors are ozone-free, can
be installed in digital copiers and printers, and are
also superior in image quality, speed and durability.
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By integrating a high-voltage MOSFET and control
IC in a single chip, these 700-volt power supply ICs
offer outstanding reliability along with compact
dimensions and lower energy consumption.
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In ICs, we aim to become the top manufac-
turer of power supply ICs for mobile applica-
tions. We intend to do this by combining high
precision and intelligent functions with power
ICs having low power consumption, thereby
making our customers’ products even better.
From the perspective of raising management
efficiency and enhancing customer relation-
ships, we will execute plans for developing
marketing operations that meet the demands
of our major customers much more closely.
New products scheduled for release include a
700-volt high-voltage power supply IC that
combines a MOSFET with a drive power supply
IC on a single chip. In high-voltage display ICs,
we will reap cost savings in products using new
technologies developed during the year ended
March 31, 2001. Finally, we began construc-
tion of a new state-of-the-art clean room for
processing 8-inch wafers at our Matsumoto
Factory in April 2001. This will enhance our
competitive edge in the markets for power
supply and display ICs with regard to technol-
ogy, quality, cost and delivery time.

Improving quality will be a key focus through-
out semiconductor operations. Plans call for

obtaining QS-9000 certification, the inter-
national standard for quality assurance systems
in the automobile industry, during the current
fiscal year.

In magnetic disks, we plan to launch a new
3.5-inch disk with a capacity of 40-80GB. We
will capture orders by demonstrating our
superiority in developing forward-looking
technologies that set Fuji Electric apart from
its competitors. A highly efficient system will
be put in place as we realign our manufacturing
lines to establish an optimal production system
continuing on from last year. We will also
develop and work toward the early commer-
cialization of magnetic disks compatible with
HDDs for consumer equipment, and network
storage HDDs. Both are expected to become
high growth areas in the near future.

In photoconductive drums, we will seek to
expand the scope of operations across the
group to an appropriate level, including in
overseas locations in the U.S., China and Hong
Kong. This will provide the springboard for
reinforcing the financial position of the group
as a whole. Furthermore, we will offer high-
quality, appealing products by pushing ahead
with the development of materials and
manufacturing technologies.
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Vending Machines
Open Freezing and Refrigerated Showcases
Coin and Currency Mechanisms
Bill Validators
Currency Systems
Beverage Dispensers
Tea Servers
Hotel Vendor Systems
Card Systems

Overview of Operating Environment and
Results for the Year Ended March 31, 2001
Vending machines, the core business of this
group, continued in a similar vein to the previ-
ous year, experiencing waning demand. As a
result, shipments of vending machines across
the whole industry fell below last year’s levels.
Intense competition forced down prices, shap-
ing a difficult operating environment. Against
this backdrop, we achieved higher sales in dairy
beverage vending machines due to additions
to our line of see-through series machines,
where the internal mechanics are visible. We
also increased sales of alcoholic beverage
vending machines equipped with an age veri-
fication system. These increases were, how-
ever, insufficient to compensate for the decline
in canned beverage vending machines. On
a brighter note, sales of cigarette vending
machines rose steadily despite a downward
trend in this market sector.

New store openings and refurbishment work
prior to the start of Japan’s Large-Scale Retail
Stores Location Law sparked a rapid increase
in orders for cold-chain equipment from July
2000 onward. Demand across the industry as
a whole accordingly rose over the previous
year. We raised sales above the industry aver-
age by developing various types of refrigerated
showcase, some of which boast the ECOMAX
V comprehensive control system to achieve
improvements in energy conservation and in-
corporate environmentally sound technologies.
Convenience stores were another source of
growth. Major chains opened many new stores
during the year. In addition, orders increased
for showcases at existing stores to display

RETAIL SUPPORT EQUIPMENT & SYSTEMS GROUP

The mission of the Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group is to become the “Most Valuable

Service Provider” of equipment and systems, primarily vending machines, for which we boast the

leading market share, as well as freezing and refrigerated showcases. Our expertise in handling

these products will provide the basis for raising efficiency in vending machine operations, management

of supermarkets and convenience stores, and food distribution processes. In these and other ways,

we will offer far-reaching solutions to customers in the retail sector.

 President, Retail Support Equipment & Systems Company Kuniyasu Takeda

MAIN
PRODUCTS

nutritional drinks, ice cream and new products
as well as to perform renovations. Overall, sales
of cold-chain equipment rose over the previ-
ous year.

Total sales of currency equipment & systems
expanded considerably due to a number of
factors. First was special demand for coin
mechanisms and accepters following the
introduction of the new ¥500 coin in Japan. A
recovery in the market for games and other
amusement equipment raised sales of coin &
currency equipment and systems. And we also
delivered cash-less systems that use contact-
less IC cards to a number of resorts.

In machines for the foodservice field, strong
demand for automatic tea servers was offset
by falling sales of drink dispensers and hotel
vending systems. As such, sales as a whole
dipped below the previous year’s level.

As a result of the above, sales for this group
increased by 2.0% to ¥143.0 billion ($1,163
million). However, lower sales of vending
machines, accompanied by a drop in selling
prices in addition to market stagnation, led to
a 39.5% year-on-year decrease in operating
income to ¥3.7 billion ($31 million).
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This vending machine is equipped with a mixing system that prepares drinks. The system
performs all steps within cups, from dispensing to stirring the ingredients.

Everything we create is premised on providing people with

greater convenience. This vending machine features a uni-

versal design for easy access for all people, from children

to the elderly and even those who require a wheelchair.

People-friendly functions abound. Buttons are large and

within easy reach, users do not need to stoop down to

pick up a product, and two or more coins can be inserted

simultaneously. The vending machine is thus a welcome

addition to barrier-free living environments.
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under a people-friendly concept.
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ECOMAX series showcases produce highly efficient,
optimized refrigeration using an inverter control that
adapts to temperature changes in each showcase.
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RETAIL SUPPORT EQUIPMENT & SYSTEMS GROUP

Measures Taken During the Year Under
Review
Although market conditions for vending
machines were extremely testing across the
entire industry, we endeavored to sustain and
expand our already overwhelming market share.
In other product fields, we implemented three
key policies to establish a solid operating base.

First, we continued to conduct our Com-
prehensive Reform Program and TCR80 Pro-
gram at our Mie Factory. The Comprehensive
Reform Program, which began in April 1999
and ran for two years, was designed to funda-
mentally reform development and production
processes for vending machines with a view to
giving the group a decisive competitive advan-
tage in quality, cost and delivery time. Specifi-
cally, the program incorporated four main
elements: raise development capabilities and
speed through the use of CAD technology;
halve production lead time by reforming all
processes between receipt of orders and
shipment of finished products through the
introduction of the Enterprise Resource Plan-
ning (ERP) system; improve quality levels in all
aspects, from R&D to mass production; and
speed up and raise efficiency in peripheral
operations related to production lines. Based
on these elements, we plan to derive specific
synergies in the current fiscal year.

TCR80, Total Cost Reduction 80, is an ex-
tensive cost-reduction initiative, including
lowering manufacturing cost and streamlining
total expenditures. The program, which aims
to lower the Mie Factory’s breakeven point to
under 80%, led to significant cost reductions in
the year under review. The success of the

TCR80 Program was outweighed by falling
prices and a decline in the sales volume of vending
machines handled by the group, which ultimately
prevented an improvement in earnings.

The second major initiative involved expanding
businesses in fields other than vending
machines, and improving the earnings
capabilities of these businesses. We improved
performance in these fields thanks to various
efforts. In currency equipment & systems, we
upgraded the manufacturing facilities of Fuji
Electric manufacturing subsidiary Shinshu Fuji
Co., Ltd., now Shinshu-Fujidenki, to create a
fully integrated production structure. We also
developed currency equipment & systems
designed to accept the new ¥500 coin and
¥2,000 bill issued in Japan during the year
under review. Proactive development of
business in cold-chain equipment also spurred
strong results. Here, we aggressively marketed
a new series of cold-chain equipment for
supermarkets, as well as increased our range
of equipment for convenience stores.

Our third key policy was to strengthen our
solutions business. The main pillar was our
Vending Machines Solutions Project launched
in October 1999. Under the project, we
proposed concrete solutions and conducted
experiments primarily to incorporate IT into our
vending machines. We also developed a Java-
based platform that will serve as a key component
in next-generation vending machines. We also
actively proposed a range of solutions, including
a system that accepts contact-less IC cards.
In doing so, we supplied systems in our solu-
tions  business.

Management Policies and Projected Results
for the Year Ending March 31, 2002
The biggest task facing this group is to enhance
the base of our vending machine operations,
which underpin the entire group’s activities.
Falling demand for vending machines owing
to market stagnation is expected to create a
challenging operating environment. Indeed, the
market will probably not grow for at least two
or three years. As such, we must move quickly
to bolster competitiveness and put in place a
structure capable of generating stable earnings.
We will implement three policies to this end.

Firstly, we will exert our leadership as the
top manufacturer of vending machines in
Japan. Spurring further growth in an industry
that has already reached a certain degree of
maturity will require us to stimulate demand
by bringing to market new products, and to
develop the functions that support them. For
example, we will work to create vending
machines that are popular with a wide range
of consumers, make our products more
environmentally sound, and raise efficiency in
vending machine operations.

 Net Sales
 Share of Total Net Sales

Operating Income

（¥ Billion） （¥ Billion）

(Projection) (Projection)

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999,

the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 and the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 reflect actual
results for this group.

2. Projections for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2002 are based on management’s estimates as
at April 27, 2001.

3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.
4. For the cautionary statement with respect to

forward-looking statements, please see the inside
cover page.



FUJI ELECTRIC.........25

The Refre Chayu tea server incorporates a univer-
sal design styled on the concept of ease of use for
all people, wherever they may be.

CEREUS-SM change machines, which handle bills
and coins, link with a POS register to automatically
dispense change, thereby raising efficiency at
check-out counters.
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We will seek to capture a higher market
share with innovative new products. Our IT
vending machines will enable cash-less sales
with a mobile phone. Universal design vend-
ing machines provide easy access for all
people, including those with physical difficul-
ties. Other initiatives will include designing
machines made almost entirely of materials
that can be recycled. And we will promote use
of our independently developed Vending
Machine Information Management and
Standard System, which provides network-
based storage of vending machine sales data
and backup information. These innovative
solutions will solidify our market position as the
leading manufacturer of vending machines.

Our second policy is to fundamentally
restructure our R&D and production centers.
R&D and production have been traditionally
carried out at our Mie Factory and by
manufacturing subsidiary Fuji Denki Reiki Seizo
Co., Ltd. In the current fiscal year, we will con-
centrate all R&D and production functions at
the Mie Factory. At the same time, we will put
in place a system that clarifies accountability.
This will involve a restructuring of Mie Factory’s
organization. Formerly structured according to

function, the new organization will consist of
product-specific business units that integrate
control of R&D, quality, costs and delivery. We
expect to derive the following five benefits from
this restructuring.
(1) More powerful and more agile R&D capa-

bilities due to the consolidation of R&D
operations

(2) Less overlapping of work and lower costs
in administrative operations

(3) Higher returns from R&D and capital
expenditures

(4) Creation of integrated production lines
designed to match the unique character-
istics of each product category, and a flex-
ible production system capable of handling
seasonal fluctuations in demand

(5) Reduced personnel (by about 300)
We will also more closely link manufacturing

and sales. Our sales subsidiary Fuji Denki
Reiki Co., Ltd. will introduce a general manager
system in its marketing and product planning
department for each product category along
the same lines as the business units of the Mie
Factory.

Our third policy is to further advance our
solutions business in the food retail sector. In
the year ended March 31, 2001, we posted
excellent results in the cold-chain equipment
and currency equipment & systems fields. We
are now looking to extend our scope of busi-
ness and improve earnings further in areas other
than vending machines. A major theme is to
build a more strengthened structure that is less
dependent on vending machines for earnings.
We will actively pursue the following measures
to bolster our financial position to this end.

Three key initiatives will guide our actions in
the current fiscal year. First, in cold-chain equip-
ment, we will curb fixed expenses by realigning
our production system and reducing per-
sonnel in line with restructuring plans for the
Mie Factory. We will also expand businesses
that raise our capability to provide solutions,
based on fitting out entire stores. Second, in
currency equipment & systems, we concen-
trated the R&D operations of three separate
bases at Shinshu-Fujidenki Co., Ltd. in April
2001 to create an integrated structure from R&D
through production. We expect to derive ben-
efits from this consolidation in the near future.
Third, we will further promote solutions busi-
ness in the food retail sector. We will offer vend-
ing machine-based solutions services to raise
the efficiency of vending machine operators
and commercialize information services, as well
as solutions for systems that accept contact-
less IC cards.

In light of the above, projections for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2002, are for net
sales of ¥139 billion and operating income of
¥2.5 billion.

 Plant and Equipment Investment
     (Including Leases)

 Depreciation

 Number of Employees

（¥ Billion）

(Projection) (Projection)

 R&D Expenditures

(Projection)

（¥ Billion）
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Overview of Operating Environment and
Results for the Year Ended March 31, 2001

This group is principally involved in logistics,
printing and information-related services, as
well as insurance agency services, financial
services and R&D. The bulk of its business is
conducted with Fuji Electric and members of
the Fuji Electric Group.

Net sales during the fiscal year ended March
31, 2001 decreased by 38.8% to ¥78.4 billion
($637 million). Nevertheless, operating income
rose by 20.8% to ¥2.4 billion ($20 million).
Summaries of the core activities of the main
companies in this business group are as
follows. Net sales and employee figures are
as of March 31, 2001.

OTHERS
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 Net Sales
 Share of Total Net Sales

（¥ Billion）

(Projection) (Projection)

Operating Income

（¥ Billion）（％）

Notes:
1. Statistics for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999,

the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000 and the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 reflect actual
results for this group.

2. Projections for the fiscal year ending March 31,
2002 are based on management’s estimates as
at April 27, 2001.

3. Net sales include inter-segment transactions.
4. For the cautionary statement with respect to

forward-looking statements, please see the inside
cove page.

FUJI LOGISTICS CO., LTD.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2001

Net Sales: ¥32.5 Billion

Number of Employees at End of Year: 518

Fuji Logistics’ primary business is distribution
services such as transport, packaging and stor-
age. It is also involved in international logistics,
the sale of equipment for rationalizing distri-
bution systems, processing products prior to
distribution and real estate leasing. It is currently
expanding services beyond the confines of the
Fuji Electric Group with the aim of contributing
to a wide range of diverse regions.

There were signs of a recovery in haulage in
the distribution industry during the year under
review centered mainly on production-related
freight. Despite these positive indications, how-
ever, overall domestic freight volumes remained
at the previous year’s levels. In dealing with
these difficult conditions, Fuji Logistics aimed
to become a company that can propose
superior logistics solutions based on the slogan
of “A Dedicated Logistic Pioneer.” As a result
of strong efforts to expand this area of the busi-
ness and active marketing to new customers,
the company achieved operating income
growth year on year. Examples of successes
in the solutions business during the fiscal year
include a domestic distribution outsourcing
contract with a foreign manufacturer of infor-
mation systems equipment based in Japan,
and the delivery and installation of financial
services terminals and their accompanying
software to banks.

FUJI ELECTRIC INFORMATION

SERVICE CO., LTD.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2001

Net Sales: ¥17.0 Billion

Number of Employees at End of Year: 678

Fuji Electric Information Service Co., Ltd., sup-
plies companies with IT services and solutions,
such as the maintenance, development and
provision of information for information systems
and networks. The company also offers visual
solutions services drawing on superior design
technology for design of products, monitoring
rooms, presentation rooms and other office
spaces, catalog production, multimedia
content creation, planning and management
of exhibitions and other events, and creation
of corporate advertisements. In addition, Fuji
Electric Information Service provides a wide
range of services and solutions for offices.
Office services range from copying, binding and
printing to document storage, management of
technical information and computer support
services. The company also sells office equip-
ment and a variety of other products.

During the year under review, Fuji Electric
Information Service focused on getting new
businesses under development for some time
up and running. In addition to incorporating
Fuji Electric’s voice-based network system, a
new business centered around IT, the company
also made progress in establishing Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) and Supply Chain
Management (SCM) systems. Steady results
were also recorded for introduced brands, in-
cluding the Web-compatible accounting pack-
age F-LINE, the new search system VEXT
SEARCH and the K-CASP sales promotion
system. In September 2000, the company
established eLab Co., Ltd. together with sev-
eral other companies to provide ASP services
for F-LINE.
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Detached housing in Ichihara City (Fuji Life)

FUJI LIFE CORP.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2001

Net Sales: ¥7.2 Billion

Number of Employees at End of Year: 169

Fuji Life’s activities include life and damage
insurance agency operations, as well as real
estate sales, leasing and brokerage services.
It also offers domestic and overseas travel
services and foreign exchange, in addition to
outsourcing services, support and sales relat-
ing to office equipment, utensils, gifts and other
products.

A decline in national land prices for the 10th
consecutive year reflected the continuing diffi-
culties of Japan’s real estate sector during the
year under review. Nevertheless, net sales were
supported by the sale of 27 detached houses
and housing sites in the cities of Kawasaki,
Kanagawa Prefecture and Ichihara, Chiba Pre-
fecture. Continuing on from the previous fiscal
year, the company built and began renting 14
condominium units in Setagaya Ward, Tokyo,
and 16 units in the city of Kasuga, Fukuoka
Prefecture. In the travel sector, the company’s
travel agency at Gate City Ohsaki in Osaki,
Tokyo, achieved sales growth by forming ser-
vice contracts with 15 new companies as well
as increasing sales to individuals.

Other highlights of the fiscal year included
the start of a nursing care business at the
Anshinkan facility in Hino, Tokyo. This busi-
ness is operated in accordance with a new law
in Japan for nursing care insurance. Elsewhere,
operations began at rest homes in Hakone,
Kanagawa Prefecture and Yunoyama, Mie Pre-
fecture. The company also began developing
online business during the year with the launch
of FL Senior Net Club on the Fuji Life website.

FUJI ELECTRIC FINANCE AND

ACCOUNTING SUPPORT CO., LTD.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2001

Net Sales: ¥1.8 Billion

Number of Employees at End of Year: 83

Fuji Electric Finance and Accounting Support
Co., Ltd. undertakes finance and accounting-
related tasks for the Fuji Electric Group to help
raise the efficiency of administrative functions
at Group members. Other activities include bill
payment services and the centralized manage-
ment of excess cash held at Fuji Electric Group
companies, including the provision of loans to
Group members.

The company’s total assets stood at ¥188.8
billion as of March 31, 2001, with a balance of
¥113.8 billion in factoring credit and a corpo-
rate client base of 9,809 companies. Loans
provided to Group companies totaled ¥64.6
billion. In this way, the company continues to
offer services as the financial arm of the Fuji
Electric Group.

During the fiscal year, the company up-
graded the cash management system (CMS)
introduced in the previous fiscal year by im-
proving and adding functions to promote
greater use. As of March 31, 2001, 70 Group
companies were using the system. Moreover,
in September 2001, the company began
offering a centralized management service for
notes receivable. With the addition of this ser-
vice, the company is contributing to the more
efficient use of capital by concentrating the
trade notes of the company on one bank to
reduce bank fees and to enable cashing of
notes on due days.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Measures Taken During the Year Under Review
Until now, each of Fuji Electric’s business groups
determined its own R&D priorities. From the year ended
March 31, 2001, however, the Fuji Electric Group more
clearly defined the relationships between R&D
investments and its five core businesses, each of which
has a dominant position in its respective industry. In
addition, the R&D budget targeted the four areas of
future growth identified in the “S21 Plan,” our medium-
term management vision: the environment, information,
services and components. In a move to make R&D
programs more productive, we shifted our R&D
emphasis onto the offensive.

We implemented this R&D offensive based on investing
the equivalent of 3% consolidated net sales in R&D. Three
main initiatives shaped R&D efforts: producing
commercially viable businesses as early as possible;
investing in Fuji Electric’s hallmark areas; and focusing
on the IT solutions field. In particular, in the Electronics
Group, we channeled energies into power semiconduc-
tors, analog ICs and magnetic disks, while in the
ED&C·Drive Systems Group, we engaged in the devel-
opment of magnetic contactors and inverters. These key
devices were developed in both the Electronics and
ED&C·Drive Systems Groups. Furthermore, in the Retail
Support Equipment & Systems Group, we pushed ahead
in developing solutions businesses relating to vending
machines and cold-chain equipment.

R&D Highlights of the Year
In the Energy & Electric Systems Group, a comprehensive
production control system was developed for the food
and medical sectors. This system integrates all aspects
of manufacturing from monitoring of facilities to
production control. A newly designed ash treatment and
recycling system converts the ashes of incinerated gar-
bage into harmless matter that is subsequently recycled.
Other developments included a geothermal turbine gen-
erator with an output of up to 110MW, the world’s larg-
est single cylinder.

In the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, we worked on the
development of magnetic contactors that comply with
international standards, inverters capable of accom-
modating 400V as required in many countries overseas,
processing input/output devices for open networks, and
small Uninterruptible Power Supplies for PCs and servers.

In the Electronics Group, we developed and began
moving toward mass production of the power MOSFET
series, which features high speed and a low power loss,
our 700V single-chip power supply IC, which ensures
the highest levels of reliability in the industry, and a 40GB,
3.5-inch magnetic disk that has a high recording density
and ensures low flying stability of read/write heads from
the disk surface.

In the Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group,
we worked on a combined air-conditioning and refrig-
eration system for convenience stores that makes
substantial electricity savings. We also developed a Java-
based platform for vending machines which enable our
customers to alter service menus or add items by installing
a Java program in vending machines.

R&D Policies for the Current Fiscal Year
During the fiscal year ending March 31, 2002, we will
focus on moving our R&D efforts onto the offensive in a
speedy yet steady manner with the view to achieving
our “S21 Plan.” Four major themes will shape our actions.
First, we will enhance R&D relating to IT solutions, envi-
ronments and services. Secondly, we will upgrade our
execution of R&D projects. Our third theme will be accel-
erating the pace of development through dynamic man-
agement. Finally, we will focus on creating a powerful
team of R&D staff. In the Energy & Electric Systems
Group, we will pursue development of e-government
solutions and environmental information management
systems. In the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, magnetic
contactors and small UPS products will be major areas
of focus. In the Electronics Group, we will work on
superfine IGBTs and switching power supply ICs for
mobile and wireless applications. Meanwhile, in the Retail
Support Equipment & Systems Group, we will princi-
pally concentrate on vending machine-based solutions.
In promoting R&D themes, road maps will be developed
to clarify implementation items, development times, R&D
topics and other issues.

For more information of Fuji Electric’s R&D activities,
visit our website at:
http://www.fujielectric.co.jp/eng/company/tech/

The development of semiconductor devices requires analytic evaluation technologies at the
nanometer level and above. Fuji Electric has developed a state-of-the-art technology that uses
Scanning Probe Microscopy (SPM) and Transmission Electron Microscopy (TEM) to enable
high-resolution analysis of arrangements and crystal structures in the nanometer range.
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40GB, 3.5-inch magnetic disk
Taking material and process technologies to their very limits,
Fuji Electric has developed a 3.5-inch, 40GB magnetic disk.
A smooth surface flatness improves the low flying stability
of the magnetic head over the disk, while a thinner protective
layer minimizes spacing loss. Furthermore, a multilayer
magnetic film makes possible finer and more uniform particle
diameters, allowing for twice the recording density than
was previously possible.

Comprehensive production control system
We harnessed IT to develop a comprehensive production
control system that covers all processes from monitoring
and control of manufacturing facilities to production control
systems. This was delivered to a domestic beer factory in
the form of DCS (Distributed Control System) PCs, the
largest number ever used in a control system in Japan.
The new system is more sophisticated than the conventional
console-type DCS, which required the use of a central
monitoring and control room. It is more suited to the
production plants of the 21st century. This state-of-the-
art, flexible control system provides for an office-like
environment through its use of multipurpose PCs.

The polymer electrolyte fuel cell is the next generation of fuel cells that applies a polymer membrane to the electrolyte. Long-lasting and compact with a high output
density, the fuel cell is expected to fulfil a wide range of uses as a power source for small distributed power generation and other applications.
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Measures Taken During the Year Under Review
It has long been a fundamental policy of the Fuji Electric
Group to run its operations in harmony with the environment.
By adhering to this policy, we strive to protect and conserve
the environment in a sustainable way, making effective
use of finite resources.

During the year under review, we focused on three
core themes. First, we positioned the environment as a
pillar of our growth strategy in the new medium-term
management vision, the “S21 Plan.” In doing so, we
reinforced our commitment to implementing environmental
activities across the Fuji Electric Group. Notable new
initiatives included a zero emission drive and the

ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES

FUJI ELECTRIC.........30

(1) Introduction of Environmental Accounting
The Fuji Electric Group is dedicated to pursuing environ-
mental management, integrating environmental activities
and business management with the view to conducting
sustainable corporate activities. To this end, it is vital that
we identify and analyze as quantitatively as possible the
effects of environmental costs and activities on our
business operations. Effective April 2000, we introduced
environmental accounting for this purpose. Environmental
accounting is a key management indicator. Furthermore,
we are disclosing results of this accounting system in-house
and to the general public. This enables stakeholders to
accurately evaluate our company, and ultimately enhances
our corporate value.

We have established an independent set of environmental
accounting guidelines where the costs of environmental
preservation and their benefits are calculated based on
guidelines formulated by the Japanese Environment
Agency (now the Ministry of the Environment). The first

stage of environmental accounting began in the year
under review and targeted Fuji Electric’s manufacturing
centers. The scope of the second phase, to be implemented
from fiscal 2002, will gradually extend to Fuji Electric
Group manufacturing subsidiaries exerting a significant
environmental impact. The results of environmental
accounting for the year under review were calculated
solely to ascertain the direct economic effects that fully
materialized during the course of the year. This calculation
was made on the basis of tangible evidence. “Hypothetical
effects” were not analyzed.

Based on environmental accounting for the parent
company in the year under review, total environmental
costs amounted to ¥3,880 million and their benefits were
¥220 million. We will continue revising our environmental
accounting guidelines as we apply them, and make more
effective and efficient environmental investments with the
ultimate goal of reducing our environmental impact.

introduction of environmental accounting. A number of
factors compelled us to pursue our second theme—
revising the Fuji Electric Group’s action plan for
environmental protection and preservation. This move
was taken in retrospect of our past activities, as well as
in light of constantly updated environmental regulations
and industry developments in Japan. Our environmental
efforts are now based on the revised action plan. Thirdly,
we took a proactive approach to disclosing information,
including the release of our first ever Environmental Report
and the posting of environmental information on the Fuji
Electric website.

� Summary of Environmental Action Plan

Performance for Fiscal 2000Medium-term Target

Achieve zero waste
emissions

Reduce landfill waste volume to no more than 1%
of all waste generated by fiscal 2010

Global warming
countermeasures

Green procurement

Environmental
accounting

Reduced landfill waste volume by 87% of fiscal
1990 levels
[Landfill waste volume was 2.8% of total waste]

Reduce unit energy consumption by a minimum of
1% every year (indexed to fiscal 1997)

Reduced unit energy consumption 7.0% in
relation to fiscal 1997
[Reduced unit energy consumption 5.5% in
relation to fiscal 1999]

Ensure that all long-term suppliers have obtained
ISO 14001 certification or are compliant with Fuji
Electric’s guidelines by fiscal 2001

695 long-term suppliers (62%) obtained ISO
certification or compliance with Fuji Electric’s
guidelines

Introduce and disclose environmental accounting
standards (Stage 1: Fuji Electric parent company
from fiscal 2000, Stage 2: Group manufacturing
subsidiaries from fiscal 2002)

Environmental accounting implemented at the
parent company
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Total Environmental Costs

Category 実  績Category

220

 Results

1. Business areas*1   840

2. Upstream/downstream*2   50

3. Administrative operations   500

4. R&D  2,180

5. Social activities  120

6. Environmental restoration  190

3,880

1. Business areas*1   200

2. Upstream/downstream*2   20

3. Other benefits  —

TotalTotal

� Results of Environmental Accounting for Fiscal 2000

Total Environmental Benefits(¥ million) (¥ million)

FUJI ELECTRIC.........31

 Results

Notes: 1. Costs and benefits mainly of implementing measures for preventing pollution, conserving energy and reducing waste
2. Costs and benefits mainly of “green” procurement and waste recycling
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ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES
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� Performance of Energy Conservation
(Years ended March 31)

(2) Environmental Management System
The Fuji Electric Group obtained ISO 14001 certification
for environmental management systems at all 10 of its
manufacturing centers in Japan by the year ended March
1999. In the year ended March 2001, four manufacturing
centers completed their third year of renewal assess-
ments. Sixteen of the Fuji Electric Group’s 24 manufac-
turing subsidiaries had obtained ISO 14001 certification
by fiscal 2000. We are urging our other manufacturing
subsidiaries to obtain their own certification as soon as
possible. With the view to promoting the proactive co-
operation of our suppliers in environmental activities, we
are requesting them to obtain ISO 14001 certification or
comply with Fuji Electric’s environmental guidelines as
one element of our green procurement activities.

(3) Pursuing Zero Waste Emissions
Fuji Electric is dedicated to creating a sustainable society
and eliminating strains on waste landfills. In the year under
review, we launched a new program for pursuing zero
waste emissions. The program aims to curtail the volume

of industrial waste produced at our
plants, and to minimize waste sent
to landfills. In fiscal 2000, we re-
duced landfill waste volume by
87% compared with fiscal 1990
levels. This equated to 2.8% of total
waste volume.

Our zero waste emission ac-
tivities continue to move forward
with the view to accelerating the
reduction of waste volumes.
Effective from April 2001, we have
set the target of reducing the
volume of waste sent to landfills
to no more than 1% of total waste
by fiscal 2010.

(4) Preventing Global Warming
Cutting emissions of greenhouse gases, a process that
encompasses energy conservation, is perhaps the single
most important issue facing the global environment. The
Third Conference of the Parties to the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change (COP3), held
in 1997, set targets for Japan to reduce greenhouses gas
emissions by 6% between 2008 and 2012 compared with
1990 levels. To realize this goal, the Law Concerning the
Promotion of the Measures to Cope with Global Warming
was established in Japan. COP3 targeted six greenhouse
gases for reduction. Of these, Fuji Electric is putting in
place measures to reduce emissions of carbon dioxide
(CO2), sulfur hexafluoride (SF6), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs)
and perfluorocarbons (PFCs).

As CO2 is produced by burning fossil fuels and other
means, there is an urgent need to conserve energy by
reducing electricity consumption. We have set the target
of reducing unit energy consumption (CO2 equivalent)
by a minimum of 1% year on year starting from fiscal
1997. During fiscal 2000, we surpassed this target by
achieving unit energy consumption of 8.40t-C per ¥100
million, a 7% decline on fiscal 1997 levels, and a year-
on-year decrease of 5.5%.

Regarding SF6, primarily used as an insulating gas in
switchgear, we are cutting emissions and reducing the
overall amount we use by introducing gas recycling
devices and making products more compact. HFCs and
PFCs are used mainly in refrigerating coolants for vending
machines and other equipment, as well as in the
manufacture of semiconductors. At present, we are
making a concerted effort to replace HFCs and PFCs
with alternatives.

(Fiscal year
standard)
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 factories
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� System flow of EcoCHEMICAL, the comprehensive
chemical substance management system

� Ash treatment and recycling system flow

(5) Technology to Preserve the Environment
The Fuji Electric Group is actively contributing to envi-
ronmental protection by offering various products that
have a lower environmental impact.

In the field of clean energy technology, we channeled
efforts into popularizing our biogas power generation

system adopting fuel cells. The
system is fueled by methane gas pro-
duced through anaerobic fermenta-
tion of organic waste such as raw
garbage and excreta of domestic
animals. The system is expected to
draw attention as a new method for
reducing greenhouse gases.

In waste disposal and recycling, we
developed an ash treatment and
recycling system adopting a direct
current resistance furnace as a main
facility. The system adopts a break-
through technology of making inciner-
ated ashes harmless and reusable.  In
the furnace, the ashes of incinerated
garbage and/or sewage sludge are

melted once by reduction so that heavy metals are sepa-
rated. The melted ashes are taken out and solidified for
reuse as sand or stones. We also began selling an induc-
tion heating type dry distillation system which can recycle
combustible materials that include plastics. This system
chemically recycles these materials in an oxygen-poor
environment converting them into carbon-based
compounds, oil-based substances and combustible gases
without generating dioxins.

In environmental information management systems,
we developed a system for the comprehensive manage-
ment of chemical substances. The original system was
developed for in-house purposes, and was improved for
more convenient use by our customers. The new system
was marketed under the brand name of EcoCHEMICAL.
Under the Pollutant Release and Transfer Register (PRTR)
Law, which came into effect in April 2001, companies

which handle specific chemical substances are required
to ascertain and manage the emissions of such sub-
stances. EcoCHEMICAL plays an instrumental role in
assisting such efforts.

Research and development of production technologies
are another theme. Here, we are working to create various
technologies such as lead-free solders for use production
processes, and use of a new cutting oil which does not
contain chlorine.

(6) Promoting Environmental Awareness
The environment is a global issue that no single company
can handle. A concerted worldwide effort is essential.
The Fuji Electric Group urges its customers, suppliers,
employees and other stakeholders to work closely with
us in taking proactive steps to help protect the environ-
ment. We are constantly seeking to supply more eco-
logically sound products and technologies that contribute
to environmental preservation. At the same time, we are
striving to expand our green procurement activities in
partnership with suppliers.

Educating our employees and raising their environmental
awareness is another commitment throughout the Fuji
Electric Group. For example, our monthly in-house news-
letter features the environmental activities of our manu-
facturing centers. We participate in green activities among
communities, such as road cleaning and tree-planting ini-
tiatives. We also hold environmental seminars and factory
visits to introduce our efforts to preserve the environment.
In these and other ways, we are constantly seeking to
establish a productive environmental dialogue with the
societies we serve.

Visit http://www.fujielectric.co.jp/eng/eco/ to learn
more about our environmental activities.

This induction heating type dry distillation
system is contributing to our zero emission
efforts by recycling waste products.
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SIX-YEAR SUMMARY

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Years ended March 31 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 2001

Net sales ............................ ¥891,086 ¥851,830 ¥852,060 ¥982,763 ¥945,382 ¥890,413 $7,244,602

Cost of sales ...................... 709,481 692,132 692,309 773,839 733,690 692,781 5,768,139
[Ratio to net sales (%)] ...... 79.6 81.3 81.3 78.7 77.6 77.8
Selling, general and
administrative
(SG&A) expenses ............. 156,598 155,555 163,878 185,561 186,075 176,114 1,273,154

[Ratio to net sales (%)] ...... 17.6 18.2 19.2 18.9 19.7 19.8
Operating income (loss) .... 25,007 4,143 (4,127) 23,363 25,616 21,517 203,309
[Ratio to net sales (%)] ...... 2.8 0.5 (0.5) 2.4 2.7 2.4
Ordinary income (loss) ....... 22,522 (948) (6,044) 18,707 21,480 16,409 183,106
[Ratio to net sales (%)] ...... 2.5 (0.1) (0.7) 1.9 2.3 1.8
Income (loss) before
income taxes and
minority interests ............. 21,319 (4,092) (11,665) 18,762 21,440 17,065 173,325

[Ratio to net sales (%)] ...... 2.4 (0.5) (1.4) 1.9 2.3 1.9
Net income (loss) ............... 9,711 (7,423) (17,388) 7,487 8,189 5,870 78,951
[Ratio to net sales (%)] ...... 1.1 (0.9) (2.0) 0.8 0.9 0.7

Yen U.S. dollars

Net income (loss)
per share .......................... ¥ 13.58 ¥ (10.38) ¥ (24.31) ¥ 10.47 ¥ 11.45 ¥ 8.21 $ 0.110

Cash dividends
per share .......................... 6.00 0.00 0.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 0.049

Payout ratio (%) ................. 44.2 — — 76.4 69.8 97.4

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Plant and equipment
investment
(including leases) ............. ¥ 34,231 ¥ 35,851 ¥ 48,319 ¥ 54,446 ¥ 58,703 ¥   — $ 278,301

Depreciation ...................... 31,090 34,393 33,993 31,808 28,467 25,234 252,764
R&D expenditures .............. 27,017 28,252 34,776 36,003 35,951 — 219,650
Return on equity (%) ......... 6.2 — — 4.2 4.6 3.3
Total assets ....................... 964,211 937,233 994,761 981,332 936,552 880,026 7,839,114
Asset turnover (times) ........ 0.94 0.88 0.86 1.02 1.04 1.04
Debt ................................... 443,538 447,697 461,957 390,807 303,339 249,364 3,606,000
Debt ratio (%) .................... 46.0 47.8 46.4 39.8 32.4 28.3

Number of employees ....... 27,103 27,641 28,173 25,939 26,389 27,127
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Net Sales
(Years ended March 31)
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REVIEW

OPERATING RESULTS

<Net Sales>
Consolidated net sales advanced 4.6%, to ¥891,086 million ($7,245 million). During the
fiscal year under review, the sales of vending machines in the Retail Support Equipment &
Systems Group dropped sharply under the continued decline in demand. Sales of the
Energy & Electric Systems Group, however, surged, supported by sales growth of
environmental and information system. In ED&C·Drive Systems and Electronics groups,
sales substantially increased from the previous fiscal year, supported by strong markets in
the first half for IT-related products and semiconductors.

By region, net sales in Japan increased by 7.9% to ¥773,531 million ($6,289 million).
Overseas sales, however, fell by 12.8% to ¥117,555 million ($956 million). As a proportion of
total net sales, overseas sales declined from 15.8% to 13.2%.

Energy & Electric Systems Group
Net sales for this group increased year on year by 8.4% to ¥413,553 million ($3,362 million).

In the environmental and information system field, sales increased over the previous
fiscal year. Although water purification and sewage treatment system projects continued to
become smaller sized and lower priced, and the market for measuring systems was also
lackluster, business in strategic growth areas such as Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
systems and industrial waste monitoring systems expanded and contributed to the increase
of sales of the environmental and information system field. In the electric power industries
field, we delivered a pumped-storage hydroelectric power plant overseas, but overall there
were fewer large projects during the fiscal year and sales declined. In the industrial and
transportation systems field, sales grew despite the low levels of capital investment in the
private sector due to the delivery of transformers for subway construction in Japan and of
clean room facilities overseas.

ED&C·Drive Systems Group
Net sales for this group rose by 25.9% to ¥196,519 million ($1,598 million).

There was strong demand in Japan from IT-related fields and precision metal molds
and injection molding equipment. Supported by this demand, domestic sales were brisk
for magnetic contactors, programmable logic controllers, and other electric distribution
and control systems products and for inverters, servomotor systems, and other drive
system products. In addition, sales of one of our specialty products, uninterruptible power
supplies (UPS) expanded. UPS provide a stable electrical power supply to essential elec-
tronic equipment. Overseas, sales of inverters rose because of the growing interest in
energy conservation.

Electronics Group
Net sales in this group increased by 18.4% to ¥137,942 million ($1,121 million).

Sales of power semiconductors increased during the first half of the fiscal year as the IT
and communications, manufacturing, and automobile sectors continued to expand their
markets and the Company developed value-added products. In the second half, however,
orders began to fall because of the dampening effect of the slowdown in the U.S. economy
on IT-related fields. Despite this setback, overall sales for the year were up substantially
compared with the previous fiscal year. Sales of ICs also turned downward in the second
half as the market began to stall, but by being selective and focusing on specific businesses,
the Company was able to achieve a large increase in sales of power supply and plasma
display ICs. Overall sales for the year were up significantly. The magnetic disk sector
experienced a severe restructuring during the fiscal year in response to sluggish shipments
of personal computers and hard disk drives. Despite these conditions, we achieved
overall sales growth based on refitting our production bases and expanding our aluminum
substrate business. Photoconductive drums also posted higher sales.
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Operating Income (Loss),
Ratio to Net Sales
(Years ended March 31)
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Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group
Net sales in this group edged up by 2.0% to ¥143,038 million ($1,163 million).

Sales of vending machines dropped sharply as unit sales volume and prices of beverage
vending machines continued to decline amid the general downward trend in the market.
Sales of freezing and refrigerated showcases, however, registered sales gains over the
previous fiscal year thanks to the introduction of model changes against the backdrop of
the active capital investment in the supermarket and convenience store sectors. Sales of
currency equipment & systems soared on the basis of the introduction of a new coin
mechanism with a slot-in escrow function to prevent losses from counterfeit ¥500 coins.

Others
Sales in Others dropped by 38.8% to ¥78,401 million ($637 million).

<Income>
Cost of sales increased by 2.5% from the previous fiscal year to ¥709,481 million ($5,768
million). Selling, general and administrative expenses, however, were virtually unchanged at
¥156,598 million ($1,273 million). As a result, operating income climbed ¥20,864 million
from the previous fiscal year, to ¥25,007 million ($203 million). This substantial improvement
can be attributed to two main factors. There was marked improvement in profitability thanks
to the strong sales of the ED&C·Drive Systems and Electronics groups. In addition, the
Company realized significant cost reduction benefits from structural reforms being imple-
mented by business structural reform programs and from exhaustive cost cutting efforts
and reductions in expenses.

By group, a jump in the sales of environmental and information system contributed to a
22.8% increase in the Energy & Electric Systems Group’s operating income, to ¥7,509
million ($61 million). In the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, favorable market conditions
supported strong sales growth, resulting in operating income of ¥5,339 million ($43 million),
a marked improvement over the last year’s operating loss of ¥2,478 million. In the Electronics
Group, higher sales of power semiconductors and ICs combined with cost reductions for
magnetic disks to produce a substantial recovery in performance. Operating income surged
to ¥5,939 million ($48 million) compared with last year’s operating loss of ¥7,552 million. In
the Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group, operating income fell by 39.5%, to ¥3,776
million ($31 million), weakening significantly under the impact of lower sales volumes and
prices caused by the sluggish market. Others posted a 20.8% increase in operating income,
to ¥2,429 million ($20 million).

Net financial expense improved from ¥2,225 million in the previous fiscal year to ¥1,540
million ($13 million) thanks to a decrease in interest expense.

Extraordinary income totaled ¥120,366 million ($979 million). The main components were
gain on securities contribution to employee retirement benefit trust, and gain on sales of
investment securities and of property, plant and equipment.

Extraordinary losses totaled ¥121,570 million ($988 million). The main components were
charge for full amount of transitional obligations for retirement benefits, loss on devaluation of
investment securities and golf club memberships and loss on sales of investment securities.

 As a result, income before income taxes and minority interests was ¥21,319 million ($173
million), an improvement of ¥25,411 million compared with the previous fiscal year’s loss
of ¥4,092 million. After deducting ¥10,708 million ($87 million) in income taxes and ¥900
million ($7 million) in minority interests, net income was ¥9,711 million ($79 million).

(%)

 Operating Income (Loss)

 Ratio to Net Sales

 Net Income (Loss)

 Ratio to Net Sales
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R&D EXPENDITURES

R&D expenditures declined by 4.4% to ¥27,017 million ($220 million), accounting for 3.0%
of net sales, almost the same as in the previous year. By group, R&D expenditures were
¥9,810 million ($80 million) in the Energy & Electric Systems Group, ¥2,957 million ($24
million) in the ED&C·Drive Systems Group, ¥7,944 million ($65 million) in the Electronics
Group, and ¥2,689 million ($22 million) in the Retail Support Equipment & Systems Group.
Expenditures for R&D in core technologies related to the whole Company amounted to
¥3,617 million ($29 million). Major R&D projects for the year included the development of an
ash treatment and recycling system that makes incinerated ashes harmless and reusable;
an international standard magnetic contactor; a 400V-inverter for use overseas; technolo-
gies for power ICs with high breakdown voltage of 700V; and a Java-based platform for
next-generation vending machines.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT INVESTMENT

Plant and equipment investment declined 4.5% year on year to ¥34,231 million ($278
million). During the fiscal year under review, the Energy & Electric Systems Group invested
¥7,643 million ($62 million), the ED&C·Drive Systems Group invested ¥5,289 million ($43
million), the Electronics Group invested ¥13,429 million ($109 million), the Retail Support
Equipment & Systems Group invested ¥6,282 million ($51 million), and investments in
Others amounted to ¥1,588 million ($13 million). Major plant and equipment investment was
made for equipment for the integrated production line for large-scale thermal power plant
equipment at the Power Plant Equipment Factory, for enhancing the capabilities of the
precision processing line for highly functional power devices and ICs and upgrading
technical development and production facilities for high-density magnetic disks at the
Matsumoto Factory, and for strengthening the production facilities of the Mie Factory’s
quick-delivery production structure for vending machines.

Depreciation expenses totaled ¥31,090 million ($253mllion).

Note 1: Plant and equipment investment is the total of investment in tangible fixed assets and
acquisition amounts for lease contracts.

Note 2: Depreciation expense does not include amortization of intangible assets.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As of March 31, 2001, total assets stood at ¥964,211 million ($7,839 million), an increase of
¥26,978 million compared with a year earlier. Current assets amounted to ¥572,026 million
($4,651 million), declining by ¥66,054 million. This decrease can mainly be attributed to the
reclassification of short-term investments to investment securities / other because of an
adoption of a new accounting standard for financial instruments. Examining the Company’s
intent of holding marketable securities at the start of the fiscal year, marketable securities
matured within one year were reclassified as short-term investments in current assets, and
the others were reclassified as investment securities / other. At the beginning of the fiscal
year, marketable securities of  ¥109,079 million ($887 million) included in current assets
were reclassified to investments securities / other. On the other hand, trade receivables
expanded by ¥33,930 million, principally by the increase of sales, and inventories rose by
¥11,663 million, reflecting the upward sales trend.

(%)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Property, plant and equipment decreased by ¥7,316 million from the previous fiscal
year, to ¥212,957 million ($1,731 million) principally due to restraint in plant and
equipment investment

Investment and other assets rose to ¥179,228 million ($1,457million), an increase of
¥100,348 million related to the previously mentioned reclassification of short-term
investments to investment securities/other.

At March 31, 2001, total liabilities amounted to ¥768,742 million ($6,250 million), up ¥18,688
million from the previous fiscal year. The main components of this increase were a ¥16,871
million jump in trade payables due to greater procurement volumes and a ¥7,540 million rise
in accrued income taxes. Among debt, short-term borrowing increased ¥12,760 million and
long-term debt grew ¥3,081 million. However, this was offset by the redemption of a
¥20,000 ($163million) straight bond issue, resulting in a net decrease of ¥4,159 million in
debt. Consequently, debt ratio improved 1.8 percentage points from the previous fiscal
year, to 46.0%.

Shareholder’s equity increased by ¥7,762 million, mainly due to the posting of net income
rather than a loss as in the previous fiscal year, advancing to ¥161,707 million ($1,315
million). The shareholders’ equity ratio, therefore, improved 0.4 percentage point to 16.8%.

CASH FLOWS

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001, cash and cash equivalents at end of year
increased ¥2,320 million ($19 million), to ¥51,760 million ($421 million). Although free cash
flow, the sum of net cash provided by operating activities and net cash used in investing
activities, increased ¥8,706 million ($71 million), compared with an increase of ¥5,471
million in the previous fiscal year, debt were reduced by the redemption of ¥20,000 million
in straight bonds.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided by operating activities was ¥30,219 million ($246 million), compared
with ¥1,175 million in the previous fiscal year. This increase was mainly due to the year’s
¥21,319 million ($173 million) in income before income taxes and minority interests,
compared with a loss of ¥4,092 million in the prior fiscal year, despite the growth in trade
receivables and inventories caused by the upward sales trend.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash used in investing activities was ¥21,513 million ($175 million) compared with net
cash provided of ¥4,296 million in the previous fiscal year. This result was attributable to the
expenditure of ¥23,637 million ($192 million) for additions to property, plant and equipment.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash used in financing activities was ¥6,972 million ($57 million) compared with ¥22,899
million in the previous fiscal year. The main reason behind this decrease was the redemp-
tion of ¥20,000 million in straight bonds, which outweighed proceeds from short-term
borrowings and long-term debt.
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

As of March 31, 2001 and 2000 2001 2000 2001

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) ........................................................... ¥ 51,760 ¥ 49,440 $ 420,813
Short-term investments (Notes 2, 4 and 6) ................................................. 1,901 113,287 15,455
Trade receivables  (Note 2) ......................................................................... 322,873 288,943 2,624,984
Allowance for doubtful receivables ............................................................. (2,279) (2,049) (18,528)
Inventories (Notes 2 and 5) ......................................................................... 159,270 147,607 1,294,878
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) ................................................................ 9,453 8,908 76,854
Other current assets .................................................................................... 29,048 31,944 236,162

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ............................................................. 572,026 638,080 4,650,618

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2 and 6):
Land ............................................................................................................. 36,432 34,480 296,195
Buildings and structures ............................................................................. 192,310 189,505 1,563,496
Machinery and equipment ........................................................................... 299,541 293,099 2,435,293
Construction in progress ............................................................................. 3,728 3,729 30,309

532,011 520,813 4,325,293

Less accumulated depreciation .................................................................. (319,054) (300,540) (2,593,935)

NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT .................................. 212,957 220,273 1,731,358

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities (Notes 2, 4 and 6):

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates.............................................. 12,023 14,056 97,748
Other ........................................................................................................ 133,923 27,859 1,088,805

Long-term loans receivable......................................................................... 2,013 1,252 16,366
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) ................................................................ 6,142 5,653 49,935
Other investments and other assets ........................................................... 26,059 31,158 211,861
Allowance for losses on overseas investments .......................................... — (539) —
Allowance for doubtful receivables ............................................................. (932) (559) (7,577)

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS ............................... 179,228 78,880 1,457,138

¥964,211 ¥937,233 $7,839,114

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term borrowings (Note 6) .................................................................. ¥254,697 ¥241,937 $2,070,707
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) ................................................. 56,495 28,954 459,309
Trade payables ............................................................................................ 190,773 173,902 1,551,000
Advances from customers .......................................................................... 51,971 50,797 422,528
Accrued income taxes (Note 10) ................................................................. 10,003 2,463 81,325
Deferred income taxes (Note 10) ................................................................ 3 8 24
Other current liabilities ................................................................................ 64,873 53,861 527,424

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES ....................................................... 628,815 551,922 5,112,317

LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 6) ....................................................................... 132,346 176,806 1,075,984
LIABILITY FOR SEVERANCE PAYMENTS (Note 2) .................................. 5,544 19,353 45,073
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (Note 10) ...................................................... 159 345 1,293
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES ............................................................. 1,878 1,628 15,268

TOTAL LIABILITIES ......................................................................... 768,742 750,054 6,249,935

MINORITY INTERESTS IN CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES .................. 33,762 33,234 274,488

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 11):

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, ¥50 par value:
Authorized—1,600,000,000 shares
Issued— 715,080,369 shares as of March 31, 2001 ............................ 47,586 — 386,878

715,080,369 shares as of March 31, 2000 ............................ — 47,586 —
Capital surplus ............................................................................................. 38,397 38,397 312,171
Retained earnings (Note 8) .......................................................................... 77,616 67,962 631,024
Unrealized gain on other securities, net of taxes. ...................................... 156 — 1,268
Foreign currency translation adjustment .................................................... (2,048) — (16,650)

161,707 153,945 1,314,691

Less shares of common stock held by the Company ................................ 0 0 0

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ................................................. 161,707 153,945 1,314,691

¥964,211 ¥937,233 $7,839,114
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

Years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001

NET SALES (Note 2) ................................................................ ¥891,086 ¥851,830 ¥852,060 $7,244,602

COST OF SALES ..................................................................... 709,481 692,132 692,309 5,768,139

GROSS PROFIT ............................................................... 181,605 159,698 159,751 1,476,463

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ... 156,598 155,555 163,878 1,273,154

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ......................................... 25,007 4,143 (4,127) 203,309

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES):

Interest and dividends income ............................................ 4,347 4,508 5,896 35,341

Interest expense .................................................................. (5,887) (6,733) (6,731) (47,862)

Other, net ............................................................................. (945) (2,866) (1,082) (7,682)

(2,485) (5,091) (1,917) (20,203)

ORDINARY INCOME (LOSS) ........................................... 22,522 (948) (6,044) 183,106

EXTRAORDINARY LOSS, NET (Note 9) ................................. (1,203) (3,144) (5,621) (9,781)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES
AND MINORITY INTERESTS ......................................... 21,319 (4,092) (11,665) 173,325

INCOME TAXES (Notes 2 and 10) ................................... 10,708 2,748 5,813 87,057

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE  MINORITY INTERESTS ...... 10,611 (6,840) (17,478) 86,268

MINORITY INTERESTS IN NET (INCOME) LOSS OF
CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES ................................. (900) (583) 90 (7,317)

NET INCOME (LOSS) ....................................................... ¥ 9,711 ¥  (7,423) ¥ (17,388) $ 78,951

U.S. dollars
Yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 1999 2001

PER SHARE AMOUNTS:
Net income (loss) (Note 2) ................................................... ¥ 13.58 ¥  (10.38) ¥ (24.31) $ 0.110

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Thousands Millions of yen

Number of Unrealized Foreign
shares of Retained gain on other currency
common Common Capital earnings  securities, translation

stock stock  surplus (Note 8) net of taxes adjustment

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 1998 ................. 715,080 ¥ 47,586 ¥ 38,397 ¥ 92,259 ¥ — ¥ —
Net loss for the year .................................... — — — (17,388) — —
Devidends .................................................... — — — (2,860) — —
Bonuses to directors ................................... — — — (232) — —
Decrease resulting from increase
of consolidated subsidiaries...................... — — — (337) — —

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 1999 ................. 715,080 ¥ 47,586 ¥ 38,397 ¥ 71,442 — —
Net loss for the year .................................... — — — (7,423) — —
Increase resulting from adoption of
liability method........................................... — — — 7,023 — —

Bonuses to directors ................................... — — — (65) — —
Decrease resulting from increase of
consolidated subsidiaries .......................... — — — (2,935) — —

Decrease resulting from decrease of
consolidated subsidiaries .......................... — — — (80) — —

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2000 ................. 715,080 ¥ 47,586 ¥ 38,397 ¥ 67,962 — —
Net income for the year ............................... — — — 9,711 — —
Increase resulting from the merger of
a consolidated
subsidiary with a non-consolidated
subsidiary ................................................... — — — 8 — —

Bonuses to directors ................................... — — — (65) — —
Change in the current period of
unrealized gain on other
securities, net of taxes .............................. — — — — 156 —

Change in the current period of
foreign currency translation adjustment ... — — — — — (2,048)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2001 ................. 715,080 ¥ 47,586 ¥ 38,397 ¥ 77,616 ¥ 156 ¥ (2,048)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2000 ................................... $386,878 $312,171 $552,537 $ — $ —
Net income for the year ................................................. — — 78,951 — —
Increase resulting from the merger of a consolidated
subsidiary with a non-consolidated subsidiary .......... — — 65 — —

Bonuses to directors ..................................................... — — (529) — —
Change in the current period of unrealized gain
on other securities, net of taxes .................................. — — — 1,268 —

Change in the current period of foreign currency
translation adjustment ................................................. — — — — (16,650)

BALANCE AT MARCH 31, 2001 ................................... $386,878 $312,171 $631,024 $1,268 $(16,650)

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
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Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

Year ended March 31, 2001 and 2000 2001 2000 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests ......................... ¥ 21,319 ¥ (4,092) $ 173,325
Depreciation and amortization .................................................................... 32,608  35,297 265,106
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful receivables ......................... 602 (1,942) 4,894
Decrease in liability for severance payments .............................................. (13,809)  (4,522) (112,268)
Interest and dividends income ....................................................................  (4,347)  (4,508) (35,341)
Interest expense ..........................................................................................  5,887  6,733 47,862
Exchange (gain) loss .................................................................................... (152) 263 (1,236)
Gain on securities contribution to employee retirement benefit trust ........ (107,983) — (877,911)
Gain on sales of investment securities ........................................................  (9,885) (21,311) (80,366)
Gain on sales of securities ..........................................................................  —  (20,002) —
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment ......................................... (2,497)  (10,237) (20,301)
Charge for full amount of transitional obligations for retirement benefits ..... 103,014 — 837,512
Loss on devaluation of investment securities ............................................. 10,442 — 84,894
Loss on devaluation of golf club memberships .......................................... 2,281 — 18,545
Loss on sales of investment securities ....................................................... 1,241 — 10,089
Extraordinary loss/other .............................................................................. 2,914 — 23,691
Extraordinary loss on the conversion of business structure ....................... —  7,454 —
Loss on devaluation of marketable securities ............................................. — 6,070 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade receivables ..................................................................................... (32,821) 2,427 (266,837)
Inventories ................................................................................................  (10,932) 45,185 (88,878)
Trade payables .........................................................................................  15,890 (3,843) 129,187
Advances from customers ....................................................................... 1,161  (27,521) 9,439

Other, net ..................................................................................................... 21,501  2,584 174,805

Cash generated from operations ......................................................... 36,434 8,035 296,211

Interest and dividends received .................................................................. 4,289 4,485 34,870
Interest paid ................................................................................................. (5,947) (6,720) (48,350)
Income taxes paid ....................................................................................... (4,557)  (4,625) (37,048)

Net cash provided by operating activities ...........................................  30,219  1,175 245,683

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Payments for purchase of marketable securities ........................................ (247) (32,908) (2,008)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities ............................................  3,307  33,796 26,886
Additions to property, plant and equipment ............................................... (23,637) (35,337) (192,171)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment ..............................  2,787  18,414 22,659
Payments for purchase of investment securities ........................................ (20,044) (2,276) (162,959)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities ............................................  16,836  21,891 136,878
Disbursements for long-term loans ............................................................. (13,866) (14,876) (112,732)
Decrease in long-term loans........................................................................  15,042  14,278 122,293
Other, net ..................................................................................................... (1,691) 1,314 (13,748)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .............................  (21,513) 4,296 (174,902)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings ............................................  12,396 (9,757) 100,780
Proceeds from long-term debt .................................................................... 10,703  17,598 87,016
Repayment of long-term debt ..................................................................... (29,646)  (30,304) (241,024)
Dividends paid to minorities ........................................................................  (424)  (437) (3,447)
Other, net .....................................................................................................  (1)  1 (8)

Net cash used in financing activities ....................................................  (6,972) (22,899) (56,683)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ... 586  (504) 4,764

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ........... 2,320  (17,932) 18,862
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ...................... 49,440  67,191 401,951
INCREASE RESULTING FROM INCREASE OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES ... — 181 —

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ................................... ¥ 51,760 ¥ 49,440 $ 420,813

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1
BASIS OF PREPARING CONSOLIDATED FINACIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by Fuji
Electric Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries in accordance with the consolidated financial statements filed
with the Prime Minister in Japan and in conformity with accounting principals and practices generally accepted
in Japan, which may differ in some material respects from accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Japan.

In preparing these statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to consolidated
financial statements prepared domestically in Japan in order to present these statements in a form that is more
familiar to readers outside Japan.

In addition, the notes to the consolidated financial statements include additional information which is not
required under accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Note 2
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2001 include the accounts of the Company and its 63
significant subsidiaries (64 in 2000 and 62 in 1999) (together, the “Companies”).

Effective April 1, 1999, the Company adopted control or influence in accordance with the new accounting
standard for consolidation, while the Company adopted the ownership concept prior to April 1, 1999. Under the
control or influence concept, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and, with minor exceptions, those of its subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly controlled. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material
unrealized profit included in assets resulting from transactions within the Companies is eliminated. The
Company’s remaining subsidiaries whose gross assets, net sales, net income (loss) and retained earnings  are
not significant in the aggregate in relation to the comparable figures in the consolidated financial statements,
have not been consolidated.

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are accounted for by the cost method.
b. Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Companies consider all short-term, highly liquid instruments
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
c. Inventories
Raw materials are stated at cost determined by the most recent purchase price method. Finished goods and
work in process are stated at actual cost determined by accumulated production cost for contract items or
average cost for regular production items, except that finished goods of certain consolidated subsidiaries are
priced by the most recent purchase price method. In accordance with accounting practices generally accepted
in the heavy electric industry, inventories include items with a manufacturing period exceeding one year.
d. Securities
Effective April 1, 2000, the Companies adopted a new accounting standard for financial instruments.

In accordance with the new standard, all applicable securities are classified as held-to-maturity securities or
other securities, depending on management’s intent, and accounted for as follows:
i) held-to-maturity debt securities which are expected to be held to maturity with the positive intent and ability

to hold to maturity are stated  at amortized cost.
ii) other securities not classified as either held-to-maturity debt securities or trading securities are mainly stated

at cost determined by the moving-average method.
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Under the adoption of the new accounting standards, marketable securities classified as current assets
decreased by ¥109,079 million ($886,821 thousand) and investment securities increased by the same amount
as of April 1, 2000.

In addition, effective April 1, 2000, certain consolidated subsidiaries only made earlier adoption for valuation
method relating to marketable securities classified as other securities.

Under the new valuation method marketable securities classified as other securities are carried at fair market
value, with the unrealized gain or loss, net of taxes, reported in a separate component of shareholders’ equity. The
adoption of the new method, however, did not materially affect the consolidated financial statements.
e. Depreciation
Depreciation is computed by the declining-balance method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the
assets, while the straight-line method is applied to buildings of the Company and domestic subsidiaries acquired
after April 1, 1998. The range of useful lives is from 7 to 50 years for buildings and from 5 to 13 years for
machinery and equipment.
f. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The allowance for doubtful accounts is stated in amounts considered to be appropriate based on the companies’
past credit loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the receivables outstanding.
g. Retirement Benefits
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have contributory funded pension plans, non-contributory
funded pension plans and unfunded retirement benefit plans as defined benefit plans.

Under the employees’ retirement plans, prior to April 1, 2000, the Company and most consolidated subsidiaries
set up a liability for retirement allowances for unfunded retirement benefit plans at 40% or 100% of the amount
which would be required if all employees voluntarily terminated their employment at the balance sheet date, while
payments to contributory funded pension plans and non-contributory funded pension plans are charged to
income when made.

Effective April 1, 2000, the Companies adopted a new accounting standard for employees’ retirement benefits
and accounted for the liability for retirement benefits based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at
the balance sheet date.

The transitional obligation, determined as of the beginning of year, is being amortized over ten years.
The prior service cost is amortized by the straight-line method over the expected remaining working lives of the

then-active employee participants.
The actual gains and losses is amortized by the straight-line method over the expected remaining working lives

of the then-active employee participants from the next period in which they arises.
As a result, net periodic benefit costs as compared with the prior method, increased by ¥105,526 million

($857,935 thousand), operating and ordinary income decreased by ¥9,176 million ($74,602 thousand) and income
before income taxes and minority interests decreased by ¥3,155 million ($25,650 thousand).

The parent company and a certain consolidated subsidiary contributed certain marketable securities with the
carrying amount of ¥4,295 million ($34,919 thousand) to employee retirement benefit trust for the pension plans,
and recognized a non-cash gain of ¥107,983 million ($877,911 thousand). The securities held in this trust are
qualified as plan assets.
h. Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs are charged to income as incurred.
i. Leases
Finance leases other than those that are deemed to transfer the ownership of the leased assets to the lessees are
accounted for by the method that is applicable to ordinary operating leases.
j. Revenue Recognition
Sales of products are generally recognized in the accounts as delivery is made. Sales of installation products are
recognized in the accounts when installation is completed.
k. Income Taxes
Effective April 1, 1999, the Companies adopted liability method for tax-effect accounting, which previously based
on the deferral method, to recognize the effect of all temporary differences in the recognition of assets and
liabilities for tax and financial purposes in accordance with new accounting standard for tax-effect accounting.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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l. Foreign Currency Transactions
Prior to April 1, 2000, short-term receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies were translated
into Japanese yen at the current exchange rates at each balance sheet date, while long-term receivables and
payables denominated in foreign currencies were translated at historical rates.

Effective April 1, 2000, the Companies adopted a revised accounting standard for foreign currency
transactions.  In accordance with the revised standard, all short-term and long-term monetary receivables
and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at
the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are charged in the statements
of operations to the extent that they are not hedged by forward exchange contracts.
m. Foreign Currency Financial Statements
Assets, liabilities, revenue and expense accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into
Japanese yen at the current exchange rate as of the balance sheet date except for shareholders’ equity,
which is translated at the historical rate.

Prior to April 1, 2000, differences arising from such translation were shown as “Foreign currency translation
adjustments” as either all asset or liability in the balance sheet. Effective April 1, 2000, such differences are
included in minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries and “Foreign currency translation adjustments” as
a separate component of shareholders’ equity in accordance with the revised accounting standard for foreign
currency transactions.
n. Derivatives and Hedging Activities
The Companies enter into derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”), including foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge foreign exchange risk associated with certain assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies and interest rate swap agreements as a means of managing its interest rate exposures on certain
assets and liabilities.

Effective April 1, 2000, the Companies adopted a new accounting standard for derivative financial
instruments and a revised accounting standard for foreign currency transactions. Under these standards,
a) All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and
b) Forward contracts applied for forecasted transactions are measured at fair value but the unrealized gains/

losses are deferred until the underlying transactions are completed if the forward contracts qualify for
hedge accounting.

Trade receivables and trade payables denominated in foreign currencies for which foreign exchange forward
contracts are used to hedge the foreign currency fluctuations are translated at the contracted rate if the forward
contracts qualify for hedge accounting.

Prior to April 1, 2000, forward contracts applied for forecasted transactions are not recognized as either
assets or liabilities in the Companies’ consolidated financial statements.

The adoption of the new accounting standard for derivative financial instruments and the revised
accounting standard for foreign currency transactions did not have a material effect on the Companies’
consolidated financial statements.

o. Net Income (Loss) per Share
Net income (loss) per share is computed, based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the respective years.
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Note 3
U.S. DOLLAR AMOUNTS
The U.S. dollar amounts included in accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto represent
the arithmetic results of translating yen into dollars at ¥123=U.S.$1, the approximate exchange rate at March
31, 2001. The U.S. amounts are presented solely for the convenience of the readers outside Japan.

Note 4
SECURITIES
Infomation regarding the marketable securities classified as other securities at March 31, 2001 was as follows:

Millions of yen

2001

Carrying Unrealized Unrealizetd
March 31, 2001 Cost amounts Gains Losses

Marketable securities classified as other securities

Equity securities ................................................................. ¥ 4,479 ¥ 4,741 ¥ 262 ¥ —
Debt securities ................................................................... 3,132 3,202 70 —

Others................................................................................. 1,122 1,117 — (5)
¥ 8,733 ¥ 9,060 ¥ 332 ¥ (5)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

2001

Carrying Unrealized Unrealizetd
March 31, 2001 Cost amounts Gains Losses

Marketable securities classified as other securities

Equity securities ................................................................. $36,415 $38,545 $2,130 $ —
Debt securities ................................................................... 25,464 26,033 569 —
Others................................................................................. 9,122 9,081 — (41)

$71,001 $73,659 $2,699 $(41)

Other securities and held-to-maturity whose fair value is not readily determinable as of March 31, 2001 were as follows:

Carrying amounts
Thousands of

U.S.dollars
Millions of yen (Note 3)

Held-to-maturity
Bond offered through private placement ............................................................... ¥ 5,000 $ 40,650

Others
Money management fund ........................................................................................ 5,105 41,504
Unquoted external bonds ........................................................................................ 200 1,626
Unquoted security ................................................................................................... 4,590 37,317

Total ...................................................................................................................... ¥14,895 $121,097

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
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The carrying values of debt securities by contractual maturities for securities classified as other securities and
held-to-maturity at March 31, 2001 were as follows:

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)
Debt Other Debt Other

securities securities securities securities

Due in one year or less ......................................................................... ¥1,220 ¥130 $ 9,919 $1,057
Due after one year through five years .................................................. 6,320 — 51,382 —
Due after five years through ten years ................................................. 1,066 20 8,667 163
Due after ten years ............................................................................... 0 — 0 —

Total ............................................................................................... ¥8,606 ¥150 $69,968 $1,220

Other securities are mainly reported at cost.
The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of marketable securities classified as other securities were

as follows:

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

Carrying amounts .......................................................................................................... ¥116,816 $ 949,724
Fair value ....................................................................................................................... 480,164 3,903,772
Unrealized gain on marketable securities classified as other securities ...................... 209,645 1,704,431
Deferred tax liabilities .................................................................................................... 152,969 1,243,650
Minority interests ........................................................................................................... 732 5,951

Carrying amounts, net unrealized holding gains and fair values of marketable securities at March 31, 2000
were as follows:

Millions of yen

2000

Net
Carrying unrealized
amounts Fair values gains (losses)

Short-term investments

Equity securities .................................................................................... ¥106,941 ¥213,046 ¥106,105

Bonds and debentures ......................................................................... 877 909 32

Others.................................................................................................... 293 284 (9)

¥108,111 ¥214,239 ¥106,128

Investment securities

Equity securities .................................................................................... ¥ 17,699 ¥728,945 ¥711,245

Bonds and debentures ......................................................................... — — —

Others.................................................................................................... — — —

¥ 17,699 ¥728,945 ¥711,245



FUJI ELECTRIC.........50

Note 5
INVENTORIES
Inventories at March 31 comprised the following:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001

Finished goods ................................................................................ ¥ 78,728 ¥ 75,138 $ 640,065
Work in process ............................................................................... 64,653 58,717 525,634

Raw materials .................................................................................. 15,889 13,752 129,179

¥159,270 ¥147,607 $1,294,878

Note 6
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Short-term borrowings at March 31 consisted of the following:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001

Loans, principally from banks ......................................................... ¥193,697 ¥179,937 $1,574,772
Commercial paper ........................................................................... 61,000 62,000 495,935

¥254,697 ¥241,937 $2,070,707

The weighed average interest rates on short-term borrowings at March 31, 2001 and 2000 were 0.63% and 0.49%, respectively.

Long-term debt at March 31 consisted of the following:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001

Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies .............. ¥ 68,841 ¥ 65,760 $ 559,681

Bonds issued by the Company:

2.7% ¥ bonds due 2000 .................................................................. — 20,000 —
2.95% ¥ bonds due 2001 ................................................................ 20,000 20,000 162,602

2.0% ¥ bonds due 2002 .................................................................. 20,000 20,000 162,602
2.05% ¥ bonds due 2002 ................................................................ 20,000 20,000 162,602
2.15% ¥ bonds due 2003 ................................................................ 20,000 20,000 162,602
2.25% ¥ bonds due 2003 ................................................................ 20,000 20,000 162,602

2.35% ¥ bonds due 2004 ................................................................ 20,000 20,000 162,602

188,841 205,760 1,535,293
Less: Portion due within one year ................................................... 56,495 28,954 459,309

¥132,346 ¥176,806 $1,075,984

The weighed average interest rates on loans, principally from banks and insurance companies at March 31, 2001 and 2000 were
3.00% and 3.06%, respectively.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
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The amounts of assets pledged as collateral for short-term borrowing and long-term debt were as follows:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001

Time deposit (included in short-term investments) ........................ ¥ 330 ¥  330 $ 2,683

Marketable securities (included in short-term investments)
and investment securities .............................................................. 565 5,429 4,593

Property, plant and equipment ....................................................... 21,815 22,632 177,358

¥22,710 ¥28,391 $184,634

As of March 31, 2001, the aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt during the next five years are as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of U.S. dollars
Year ending March 31 yen (Note 3)

2002 ........................................................................................................................ ¥ 56,495 $ 459,309
2003 ........................................................................................................................ 53,410 434,228
2004 ........................................................................................................................ 50,942 414,162
2005 ........................................................................................................................ 14,948 121,528
2006 and thereafter ................................................................................................ 13,046 106,066

¥188,841 $1,535,293

Note 7
RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have contributory funded pension plans, non-contributory
funded pension plans and unfunded retirement benefit plans as defined benefit plans.

In addition, the Group pays other retirement benefits other than the above plans.

The liability (asset) for employees’ retirement benefits at March 31, 2001 consisted of the following:
Thousands
of dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)
2001 2001

Projected benefit obligation ..................................................................................... ¥ 412,893 $ 3,356,854
Fair value of plan assets ........................................................................................... (286,103) (2,326,041)

Excess projected benefit obligation over  plan assets ........................................ 126,790 1,030,813
Unrecognized transitional obligation ....................................................................... (25,839) (210,073)
Unrecognized actuarial gain ..................................................................................... (96,030) (780,732)
Unrecognized prior service cost .............................................................................. 599 4,870

Carrying amount ................................................................................................ 5,520 44,878
Prepaid pension expense ......................................................................................... 24 195

Net liability ..................................................................................................... ¥ 5,544 $ 45,073
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The components of net periodic benefit costs are as follows:
Thousandsof
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)
2001 2001

Service cost .............................................................................................................. ¥ 11,470 $ 93,252
Interest cost .............................................................................................................. 12,600 102,439
Expected return on plan assets ............................................................................... (8,947) (72,740)
Amortization of transitional obligation ..................................................................... 105,886 860,862
Amortization of actuarial (gain) loss ......................................................................... — —
Amortization of prior service cost ............................................................................ (10) (81)
Net periodic benefit costs ........................................................................................ ¥120,999 $983,732

Other than the above amount, the Group paid the special retirement benefits of ¥1,253 million ($10,186 thousand).

Assumptions used for the year ended March 31, 2001 are set forth as follows:
2001

Discount rate ....................................................................................................................................................... 3.5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets ............................................................................................................... 4.0%

The transitional obligation, determined as of the beginning of year, is being amortized over ten years, while the full
amount of this obligation which is recognized in the Company and cetain domestic consolidated subsidiaries is
charged to income by contributing certain marketable securities to employee retirement benefit trust for the
pension plans.

Note 8
RETAINED EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS
Annual appropriation of retained earnings is recorded in the financial year when approved at the
shareholders’ meeting.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
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Note 9
EXTRAORDINARY LOSS, NET
Extraordinary loss, net for the year ended March 31 comprised the following:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 1999 2001

Extraordinary income
Gain on securities contribution to employee
retirement benefit trust ...................................................... ¥ 107,983 ¥ — ¥ — $ 877,911

Gain on sales of investment securities
Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ...................... — — 627 —
Others ............................................................................... 9,885 21,311 — 80,366

Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment ................ 2,497 10,237 4,421 20,301
Gain on sales of securities .................................................. — 19,280 10,176 —

Extraordinary loss
Charge for full amount of transitional obligations
for retirement benefit ......................................................... (103,014) — — (837,512)

Loss on devaluation of investment securities ..................... (10,442) — — (84,894)
Loss on devaluation of golf club memberships .................. (2,281) — — (18,545)
Loss on sales of investment securities ............................... (1,241) — — (10,089)
Extraordinary loss on the conversion of
business structure .............................................................. — (42,475) (15,351) —

Loss on devaluation of marketable securities ..................... — (6,070) — —
Payment for amortization of past service costs.................. — (5,242) (5,314) —
Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries ...................................... — — (180) —
Others................................................................................... (4,590) (185) — (37,319)

¥ (1,203) ¥ (3,144) ¥ (5,621) $ (9,781)

Note 10
INCOME TAXES
The components of income taxes for the year ended March 31 were as follows:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 1999 2001

Current ..................................................................................... ¥12,098 ¥ 3,994 ¥4,891 $ 98,357
Deferred ................................................................................... (1,390) (1,246) 922 (11,300)

¥10,708 ¥ 2,748 ¥5,813 $ 87,057
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The Company and domestic subsidiaries are subject to corporate income tax, prefectural and municipal inhabitant
taxes and enterprise tax, based on income.

The significant components of deferral tax assets and liabilities at March 31, were as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001

Deferred tax assets
Investment securities ............................................................................... ¥ 4,922 ¥ — $ 40,016
Inventories ................................................................................................ 4,795 3,513 38,984
Tangible fixed assets ............................................................................... 2,112 3,459 17,171
Accrued employee benefits ..................................................................... 4,902 2,947 39,853
Tax loss carryforwards ............................................................................ 2,751 4,559 22,366
Accrued severance benefits .................................................................... — 4,103 —
Other ........................................................................................................ 2,954 2,059 24,016

Gross deferred tax assets ........................................................................... 22,436 20,640 182,406
Less: Valuation allowance ....................................................................... (3,563) (2,802) (28,967)

Total deferred tax assets ............................................................................. ¥18,873 ¥17,838 $153,439

Deferred tax liabilities
Retained earnings appropriated for tax deductible reserves ................. ¥ (2,877) ¥ (3,010) $ (23,391)
Other ........................................................................................................ (563) (620) (4,576)

Gross deferred tax liabilities ....................................................................... (3,440) (3,630) (27,967)
Net deferred tax assets ............................................................................... ¥15,433 ¥14,208 $125,472

Reconciliation of the differences between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate is as follows:

2001 2000

Statutory income tax rate ................................................................................................... 42.1% 42.1 %
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes ....................................................... 9.1 (22.4)
Valuation allowance ........................................................................................................ — (47.7)
Other ............................................................................................................................... (1.0) (39.1)

Effective income tax rate .................................................................................................... 50.2% (67.1)%

Note 11
CONTINGENT  LIABILITIES
Contingent liabilities at March 31 were as follows:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001

Notes discounted and endorsed................................................................. ¥ 1,941 ¥ 2,017 $ 15,780
Guarantees .................................................................................................. 17,942 19,883 145,870

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
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Note 12
LEASES
Pro forma information of leased property such as acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation, obligation under
finance lease, lease expense, depreciation  expense of finance leases that do not transfer ownership of the leased
property to the lessee on an “as if capitalized” basis for the years ended March 31, 2001 and 2000 was as follows:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001
Machinery Machinery Machinery

and and and
Equipment Equipment Equipment

Acquisition cost ........................................................................................... ¥46,705 ¥42,308 $379,715
Accumulated depreciation .......................................................................... 22,494 19,558 182,878
Net leased property ..................................................................................... ¥24,211 ¥22,750 $196,837

Obligations under finance leases:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001
Due within one year ..................................................................................... ¥ 8,889 ¥ 8,406 $ 72,268
Due after one year ....................................................................................... 15,322 14,344 124,569
Total ............................................................................................................. ¥24,211 ¥22,750 $196,837

Lease expense and depreciation expense under finance leases:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

2001 2000 2001
Lease expense ............................................................................................. ¥ 9,137 ¥ 9,228 $ 74,285
Depreciation expense .................................................................................. 9,137 9,228 74,285

Note 13
DERIVATIVES
The Companies, operate globally, are exposed to market risk arising from fluctuation in foreign currency exchange
rates and enter into derivative financial instruments for the purpose of reducing such risk. The Company also enter
into interest rate swap agreements as a means of managing their interest rate exposure. The Company do not
hold or issue derivatives for speculative or dealing purposes.

Because the counterparties to these derivatives are limited to authentic financial institutions, the Company do
not anticipate any losses arising from credit risk.

All derivative transactions are entered into to hedge foreign currency exposures incorporated within business.
Accordingly, market risk in these derivatives is basically offset by opposite movements in the value of hedged
assets or liabilities. Derivative transactions entered into by the Company have been made in accordance with
Companies’ policies. The execution and control of derivatives, which is basd on application of each section are
controlled by the Finance Department. Each derivative transaction is periodically reported to the management and
each section.



FUJI ELECTRIC.........56

The contract amounts of derivative financial instruments held as of March 31 were as follows:

Thousands of Thousands of
Millions of U.S. dollars Millions of U.S. dollars

yen (Note 3) yen (Note 3)

Amount of contract Estimated fair value

2001 2001 2001 2001

Forward exchange contracts:

To sell foreign currencies .................................................. ¥5,490 $44,634 ¥5,960 $48,455

Millions of yen

Amount of Estimated
contract fair value

2000

Forward exchange contracts:

To sell foreign currencies .................................................................................................. ¥1,360 ¥1,308

To buy foreign currencies .................................................................................................. 3,665 3,228

Foreign currency forward contracts which qualify for hedge accounting for the year ended March 31, 2001 and such
amounts which are assigned to the associated assets or liabilities and are recorded on the balance sheet at March
31, 2000, are excluded from the disclosure of market value information.

Note 14
SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company has expanded its business segment reporting in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001 in accordance
with reorganization of the Company. The Company’s primary business activities include (1) Energy & Electric
Systems, (2) ED&C·Drive Systems, (3) Electronics, (4) Retail Support Equipment & Systems and (5) Others. A
summary of net sales, operating costs and expenses, and operating income (loss) by segment of business activities
for the years ended March 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were as follows:

Millions of yen

Energy & Retail Support Elimination
Electric ED&C·Drive Equipment & and Consolidated

2001 Systems Systems Electronics systems Others Total Corporate total

Sales

Unaffiliated
customers .................. ¥408,954 ¥175,090 ¥135,101 ¥142,348 ¥29,593 ¥891,086 ¥ — ¥891,086

Intersegment ................ 4,599 21,429 2,841 690   48,808   78,367  (78,367) —

Total sales ....................... 413,553 196,519 137,942 143,038 78,401 969,453 (78,367) 891,086

Operating costs
and expenses ................  406,044 191,180 132,003 139,262 75,972 944,461 (78,382) 866,079

Operating income ............ ¥ 7,509 ¥ 5,339 ¥ 5,939 ¥ 3,776 ¥ 2,429 ¥ 24,992 ¥ 15 ¥ 25,007

Total assets ..................... ¥381,451 ¥153,090 ¥148,366 ¥113,877 ¥74,778 ¥871,562 ¥ 92,649 ¥964,211

Depreciation and
amortization ................... ¥ 7,307 ¥ 5,041 ¥ 15,034 ¥ 3,375 ¥ 1,753 ¥ 32,510 ¥ 98 ¥ 32,608

Capital expenditure ......... ¥ 6,604 ¥ 4,006 ¥ 8,050 ¥ 5,642 ¥ 1,659 ¥ 25,961 ¥ 41 ¥ 26,002
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Millions of yen

Energy & Retail Support Elimination
Electric ED&C·Drive Equipment & and Consolidated

2000 Systems Systems Electronics systems Others Total Corporate total

Sales

Unaffiliated
customers .................. ¥377,424 ¥138,392 ¥114,790 ¥139,583 ¥ 81,641 ¥851,830 ¥  — ¥851,830

Intersegment ................ 4,238 17,698 1,728 632 46,408 70,704 (70,704) —

Total sales ....................... 381,662 156,090 116,518 140,215 128,049 922,534 (70,704) 851,830

Operating costs
and expenses ................ 375,546 158,568 124,070 133,969 126,038 918,191 (70,504) 847,687

Operating income (loss) ... ¥ 6,116 ¥  (2,478) ¥  (7,552) ¥ 6,246 ¥ 2,011 ¥ 4,343 ¥ (200) ¥ 4,143

Total assets ..................... ¥324,795 ¥132,474 ¥149,584 ¥110,947 ¥103,420 ¥821,220 ¥116,013 ¥937,233

Depreciation and
amortization ................... ¥ 6,748 ¥ 5,017 ¥ 16,476 ¥ 3,763 ¥ 3,192 ¥ 35,196 ¥  101 ¥ 35,297

Capital expenditure ......... ¥ 9,905 ¥ 5,568 ¥ 8,316 ¥ 2,944 ¥ 5,310 ¥ 32,043 ¥  91 ¥ 32,134

Millions of yen

Energy & Retail Support Elimination
Electric ED&C·Drive Equipment & and Consolidated

1999 Systems Systems Electronics systems Others Total Corporate total

Sales

Unaffiliated
customers .................. ¥359,732 ¥135,040 ¥126,797 ¥148,554 ¥ 81,937 ¥852,060 ¥ — ¥852,060

Intersegment ................ 2,656 24,288 941 830 51,961 80,676 (80,676) —

Total sales ....................... 362,388 159,328 127,738 149,384 133,898 932,736 (80,676) 852,060

Operating costs
 and expenses ............... 363,342 165,429 132,809 143,214 131,925 936,721 (80,533) 856,187

Operating income (loss) .. ¥ (954) ¥ (6,101) ¥ (5,071) ¥ 6,169 ¥ 1,972 ¥ (3,985) ¥ (142) ¥ (4,127)

Total assets ..................... ¥365,532 ¥133,820 ¥159,542 ¥112,578 ¥106,883 ¥878,356 ¥116,404 ¥994,761

Depreciation and
 amortization .................. ¥ 6,070 ¥ 5,243 ¥ 17,494 ¥ 3,429 ¥ 1,717 ¥ 33,955 ¥ 104 ¥ 34,059

Capital expenditure ......... ¥ 7,607 ¥ 5,914 ¥ 11,956 ¥ 4,463 ¥ 9,977 ¥ 39,920 ¥ 3 ¥ 39,923

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 3)

Energy & Retail Support Elimination
Electric ED&C·Drive Equipment & and Consolidated

2001 Systems Systems Electronics systems Others Total Corporate total

Sales

Unaffiliated
customers .................. $3,324,829 $1,423,496 $1,098,382 $1,157,301 $240,594 $7,244,602 $ — $7,244,602

Intersegment ................ 37,390 174,219 23,098 5,610 396,813 637,130 (637,130) —

Total sales ....................... 3,362,219 1,597,715 1,121,480 1,162,911 637,407 7,881,732 (637,130) 7,244,602

Operating costs
 and expenses ............... 3,301,170 1,554,309 1,073,196 1,132,212 617,658 7,678,545 (637,252) 7,041,293

Operating income ............ $ 61,049 $ 43,406 $ 48,284 $ 30,699 $ 19,749 $ 203,187 $ 122 $ 203,309

Total assets ..................... $3,101,228 $1,244,634 $1,206,228 $ 925,829 $607,951 $7,085,870 $ 753,244 $7,839,114

Depreciation and
 amortization .................. $ 59,406 $ 40,984 $ 122,228 $ 27,439 $ 14,252 $ 264,309 $ 797 $ 265,106

Capital expenditure ......... $ 53,691 $ 32,569 $ 65,447 $ 45,870 $ 13,488 $ 211,065 $ 333 $ 211,398
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The effect of the change in the accounting for employees’ retirement benefits  described in Note 2 was to increase
operating expence of Energy & Electronics Systems, ED&C·Drive Systems, Electronics, Retail Support Equipment&
systems and others for the year ended March 31, 2001, by ¥5,266 million ($42,813 thousand), ¥2,002 million
($16,276 thousand), ¥776 million ($6,309 thousand), ¥752 million ($6,114 thousand) and  ¥378 million ($3,073
thousand), respectively, from such segments in the prior year.

The overseas sales of the Companies for the years ended March 31, 2001 and 2000 were ¥117,555 million
($955,732 thousand) and ¥134,737 million accounted for 13.2% and 15.8% of consolidated net sales, respectively.

Note 15
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
a. Issuance of Bonds
On April 26, 2001, the Company issued ¥20,000 million ($162,602 thousand) of unsecured 1.02% Japanese
yen bonds. The bonds are due April 26, 2006. The issue price of the bonds was 100% of the face value of
the bonds.

b. Appropriations of Retained Earnings
The following appropriations of retained earnings at March 31, 2001 were approved at the Company’s
shareholders meeting held on June 28, 2001:

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen (Note 3)

Year-end cash dividends, ¥6.00 ($0.049) per share ......................................... ¥4,290 $34,878
Bonuses to directors ......................................................................................... 80 650

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity for each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2001 and the related consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the
two years in the period ended March 31, 2001, expressed in Japanese yen. Our audits were made in accordance with
auditing standards, procedures and practices generally accepted and applied in Japan and, accordingly, included such
tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements, expressed in yen, present fairly the consolidated
financial position of Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries at March 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consoli-
dated results of their operations for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2001 and their cash flows for
each of the two years in the period ended March 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles and practices gener-
ally accepted in Japan applied on a consistent basis.

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. and consolidated subsidiaries
have adopted new accounting standards for financial instruments and employee’s retirement benefits and a revised
accounting standard for foreign currency transactions in the preparation of their consolidated financial statements.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March
31, 2001 are presented solely for convenience. Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U.S. Dollar
amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been made on the basis described in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Tokyo Japan
June 28, 2001

See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements which explains the basis of preparing the consolidated financial
statements of Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. under Japanese accounting principles and practices.

Certified Public Accountants Phone: 03 3503-1100
Hibiya Kokusai Bldg. Fax: 03 3503-1197
2-2-3, Uchisaiwai-cho
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0011
C.P.O. Box 1196, Tokyo 100-8641
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E N E R G Y  &  E L E C T R I C  S Y S T E M S

Fuji Electric Construction Co., Ltd. Planning and execution of a variety of plant facilities, electrical construction and installation

Fuji Denki Sosetsu Co., Ltd. Design and execution of building facilities; marketing of air-conditioning equipment and OA
equipment

FFC Limited Development, manufacture and marketing of information processing systems

Fuji Electric Systems Co., Ltd. Construction planning, planning management, installation management, installation, testing,
trial operation, adjustment and after-sales service of a variety of plants; comprehensive plant
maintenance; new services including maintenance and control of plant operation

Tochigi Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of industrial and electrical measuring instruments

Azumi Fuji Company Manufacture, marketing and after-sales service of electric machinery and equipment

Fuji FKE Co., Ltd. Manufacture, marketing and after-sales service of environmental facilities, induction furnaces
and heating equipment for induction furnaces

Fuji Electric Excel Co., Ltd. Broking and marketing of various goods; contract welfare business and others

Fuji Gas Turbine Research Research and development of gas turbines
Center Co., Ltd.

Fuji Electric Power Engineering & Engineering and after-sales service of thermal power generation plant equipment
Service Co., Ltd.

Fuji IT Co., Ltd. Total solutions for information systems, data control and electronic information equipment

Fuji Electric Instruments Co., Ltd. Development, manufacture and marketing of such products as industrial measuring instruments
and information processing terminals

Fuji Electric Chiba Tech. Co., Ltd. Maintenance, inspection and repair of substation equipment

E D & C · D R I V E  S Y S T E M S

Fuji Electric Technica Co., Ltd. Marketing of equipment and control products, as well as repair services for drive system products

Chichibu Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of control equipment, lead frames for semiconductors and plastic
products

Fuji Denki Seiki Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of small-scale motors

Fuji Electric Motor Co., Ltd. Development and manufacture small- to medium-capacity industrial motors

Fuji Electric Hi-Tech Corp. Manufacture and marketing of direct-current stabilized power supply systems

Fuji/GE Private Ltd. Marketing of power distributors and control equipment in Southeast Asia

Fuji/GE Taiwan Co., Ltd. Marketing of power distributors, control equipment and drive system products in Taiwan

Fuji Electric Dalian Co., Ltd. Manufacture of low-voltage circuit breakers and motors

Ibaraki Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of power distributors and control equipment

Fuji Electric F-Tech Co., Ltd. Manufacture of production lines, casts and jigs; design, manufacture and repair of power
distributors and control equipment

E L E C T R O N I C S

Fuji Electric Storage Device Co., Ltd. Development and manufacture of magnetic disks

Fuji Electric (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Manufacture of magnetic disks

Fuji Electric Imaging Device Co., Ltd. Development, manufacture and marketing of photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

U.S. Fuji Electric Inc. Manufacture and marketing of photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

Hong Kong Fujidenki Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

Hokuriku Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture of power semiconductors

Iiyama Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture of ICs and power semiconductors

Omachi Fuji Co., Ltd. Manufacture of ICs and power semiconductors

Fuji Electric Philippines, Inc. Manufacture of power semiconductors

CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

(As of July 1, 2001)
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Fuji Electric (Scotland) Ltd. Manufacture of power semiconductors

Fuji Electric Taiwan Co., Ltd. Marketing of semiconductors

Fuji Denki Matsumoto Design, manufacture and marketing of automation equipment, labor-saving equipment,
Mechanics Co., Ltd. production lines, casts and jigs, semiconductor application devices and PC-boards

R E T A I L  S U P P O R T  E Q U I P M E N T  &  S Y S T E M S

Fuji Denki Reiki Co., Ltd. Marketing of vending machines, refrigerated showcases and retail information systems

Fuji Denki Reiki Seizo Co., Ltd. Manufacture of vending machines and freezing showcases

Fuji Electric V&C Altec Co., Ltd. Manufacture, marketing, installation and maintenance of refrigerated showcases; renewal,
overhaul and upgrade of vending machines

Shinshu-Fujidenki Co., Ltd. Manufacture and repair of currency equipment

Hoei Plastics Co., Ltd. Processing of plastic and sheet mold

O T H E R S

Fuji Logistics Co., Ltd. General physical logistics operations including shipping, storage and packing

Fuji Electric Information Production and marketing of picture and video images including printing, copying,
Service Co., Ltd. bookbinding, photography, video and computer graphics

Fuji Electric Corporate Research Research and development of basic technologies, new technologies and products
and Development Ltd.

Fuji Life Corp. Handling of insurance, real estate, travel planning, currency exchange, commodity sales,
nursing support services, hotel operations and employee benefits

Fuji Electric Finance and Handling of accounts receivable and accounts payable functions for finance departments of
Accounting Support Co., Ltd. Fuji Electric and Group companies

Tottori Electric Manufacturing Manufacture of clean room equipment, semiconductors and control devices for vehicles
Co., Ltd.

Asahi Keiki Co., Ltd. Manufacture and marketing of thermostats, general-purpose electronic measuring instruments
and electronic control equipment

Fuji Almacs Co., Ltd. Marketing of semiconductor manufacturing devices, precision scientific measuring equipment,
industrial electronic equipment and chemical products

C O N S O L I D A T E D  S U B S I D I A R I E S  R E L A T E D  T O  M U L T I P L E  S E G M E N T S

Fuji ElC Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Tokai Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Kansai Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Hoei Denki Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Chubu Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Kyushu Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Hokkaido Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Tohoku Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Chugoku Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Shikoku Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Marketing, installation and repair of electrical machinery, control systems and electronic components

Fuji Electric GmbH Marketing of semiconductors, photoconductive drums for copiers and printers, inverters, power
distributors and control equipment

Fuji Electric (Asia) Co., Ltd. Marketing of inverters, power distributors, control equipment and semiconductors

Fuji Electric Corp. of America Marketing of semiconductors, power distributors, control equipment and ring blowers

Fuji Electric Singapore Private Ltd. Marketing of semiconductors and inverters
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OVERSEAS NET SALES OVERSEAS NET SALES BY REGION

GLOBAL ACTIVITIES

A S I A

NET SALES

(Except Japan)

1999 20012000

986
95.7

98.6

85.2

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

�

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

117.5134.7

852.0 851.8
891.0

123.2

14.5% 15.8%
13.2%

982.7

145.2

14.8%

945.3

135.5

14.3%

� Net sales
� Overseas net sales

Overseas net sales ratio(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

2001

Asia (Except Japan)
72.5%

Asia (Except Japan)
73.2%

North America
9.3%

Europe 5.3%

Other Areas 12.2%

2000

�

North America
15.2%

Europe 9.2%

Other Areas 3.1%

MAJOR PRODUCTS SOLD DURING THE YEAR

�Pumped-storage hydroelectric power plants to India

�Thermal power plants to Bangladesh

�Thermal power plants to Taiwan

�Semiconductors

�Magnetic disks

�Power distributors and control equipment

� Inverters

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

◆ Shanghai

◆ Beijing

◆ Taipei

◆ Bangkok

MAJOR MANUFACTURING COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric Dalian Co., Ltd. Low-voltage circuit breakers and motors

◆ Shanghai Fuji Electric Switchgear Co., Ltd. Switchgear

◆ Fuji GE Drives (Wuxi) Co., Ltd. Inverters

◆ Atai Fuji Electric Co., Ltd. Small- to medium-capacity industrial
motors

◆ Shanghai General Fuji Refrigeration Refrigerated showcases
Equipment Co., Ltd.

◆ Hong Kong Fujidenki Co., Ltd. Photoconductive drums for copiers and
printers

◆ Fuji Electric (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Magnetic disks

◆ Fuji Electric Philippines, Inc. Power semiconductors

◆ P.T. Fuji Dharma Electric Watt-hour meters

MAJOR SALES COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric (Asia) Co., Ltd. Inverters, power distributors, control
equipment and semiconductors

◆ Fuji Electric (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Inverters, switchgear and transformers

◆ Fuji/GE Taiwan Co., Ltd. Power distributors, control equipment
and drive system products in Taiwan

◆ Fuji Electric Taiwan Co., Ltd. Semiconductors

◆ Fuji Electric Singapore Private Ltd. Semiconductors and inverters

◆ Fuji/GE Private Ltd. Power distributors and control
equipment in Southeast Asia
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N O R T H  A M E R I C A

NET SALES

E U R O P E

NET SALES

O T H E R  A R E A S

NET SALES

(Oceania, Central & South America and Africa)

1999 20012000

17.9

12.5

11.1

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

1999 2000 2001

9.8

7.1

10.7

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)

MAJOR PRODUCTS SOLD DURING THE YEAR

�Photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

�Semiconductors

� Inverters

MAJOR MANUFACTURING COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ U.S. Fuji Electric Inc. Photoconductive drums for copiers and
printers

◆ GE Fuji Drives America S.A. de C.V. Inverters

MAJOR SALES COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric Corp. of America Semiconductors, power distributors,
control equipment and ring blowers

◆ GE Fuji Drives USA, Inc. Inverters

MAJOR PRODUCTS SOLD DURING THE YEAR

�Semiconductors

�Photoconductive drums for copiers and printers

� Inverters

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

◆ Erlangen (Germany)

MAJOR MANUFACTURING COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric (Scotland) Ltd. Power semiconductors

◆ Fuji Electric France S.A. Measuring instruments

MAJOR SALES COMPANIES MAJOR BUSINESS

◆ Fuji Electric GmbH Semiconductors, photoconductive
drums for copiers and printers, inverters,
power distributors and control equipment

1999 20012000

�

3.6

16.3

6.4

(Years ended March 31)
(¥ Billion)
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ORGANIZATION CHART

(As of July 1, 2001)

Energy &  Electric Systems Company

President

ED&C � Drive Systems Company

Electronics Company

Retail Support Equipment & Systems Company

� Sales Coordination Group
� Sales Planning Office
� Public Relation & Project Management Office

� Information & Control Systems Group
� Sales Div.
� Public & Social Systems Div.
� Information Technology Div.

� Environmental Systems Group
� Sales Div.
� Environmental Systems Div.
� Water Treatment Systems Div.

� Power Systems Group
� Sales Div.
� Thermal Power Div.
� Fuji/Siemens Energy Promotion Group
� Nuclear Power & Radiation Systems Div.
� Power Systems Control & Energy Management Div.
� Hydro Power Promotion Office
� Transmission & Distribution Systems Div.
� Transportation & Defense Systems Div.
� Industrial Systems Div.
� Quality Management Office
� Energy Solution Office

� Fuji/KHI Nuclear Power Promotion Group
� Tokyo Systems Factory
� Substation Systems Factory
� Power Plant Equipment Factory
� Plant Engineering Coordination Office
� Company Administration Div.

� Sales Div.
� International Sales Div.
� Technology Planning Div.
� ED&C and Power Supply Systems Div.

� Fukiage Factory
� Otawara Factory

� Control & Drive Systems Div.
� Suzuka Factory
� Kobe Factory

  � PLC Promotion Dept.
� Company Administration Div.

� ICs Div.
� Power Semiconductors Div.

� Sales Dept.
� Business Strategy Dept.

� Computer Peripherals and Components Div.
� Matsumoto Factory
� Yamanashi Factory
� Company Administration Div.

� Corporate Planning Office

� Planning Dept.

� Personnel Dept.

� Group Management Office

� Management Dept.

� Corporate Finance Office

� Finance & Accounting Dept.

� Corporate Technology Planning Office

� Planning Dept.

� New Business Planning Dept.

� Corporate Production Planning Office

� Production Technology Dept.

� Purchasing Dept.

� IT Planning Office

� Global Business Promotion Office

� Export Control Office

 

� Internal Audit Dept.

� Legal & Intellectual Property Dept.

� Administration Services Dept.

� Sales Promotion Office

� Administration Dept.

� Kansai Branch Office

� Chubu Branch Office

� Kyushu Branch Office

� Hokkaido Branch Office

� Tohoku Branch Office

� Hokuriku Branch Office

� Chugoku Branch Office

� Shikoku Branch Office

� Corporate Technology Development Office

� Corporate R&D Center

� Production Technology Laboratory

� Fuji Electric Hospital

� Vending Machines & Specialty Equipment Div.
� Card & Currency Equipment Div.
� Technology Planning Div.
� Mie Factory
� Company Administration Div.



PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS: Percentage of Ownership (%)

FUJITSU LIMITED 10.40%

ASAHI MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE CO. 6.45%

THE DAI-ICHI KANGYO BANK, LIMITED 4.39%

THE FURUKAWA ELECTRIC CO., LTD. 3.75%

JAPAN TRUSTEE SERVICES BANK, LTD. (TRUST ACCOUNT) 3.28%

THE INDUSTRIAL BANK OF JAPAN, LIMITED 2.83%

ROYAL TRUST CORP OF CANADA, CLIENT A/C 2.07%

BOSTON SAFE DEPOSIT BSDT TREATY CLIENTS OMNIBUS 1.95%

THE ASAHI BANK, LTD. 1.71%

FURUKAWA CO., LTD. 1.54%

Fuji Electric Co., Ltd.

HEAD OFFICE:

Gate City Ohsaki, East Tower,

11-2, Osaki 1-chome, Shinagawa-ku,

Tokyo 141-0032, Japan

ESTABLISHED:

August 29, 1923

SECURITIES CODE NUMBER:

6504

SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

CORPORATE DATA
（As of March 31, 2001）

ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING:

715,080,369

PAID-IN CAPITAL:

¥47,586,067,310

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS:

70,620

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:

Consolidated: 27,103

Non-consolidated: 9,697

For further information, please contact:

Fuji Electric Co., Ltd.
Corporate Communications
Tel : +81-3-5435-7206
Fax: +81-3-5435-7486
E-mail: info@fujielectric.co.jp
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